

AUGUST 2023

FINAL BASIC ASSESSMENT REPORT

Construction of the Proposed Residential Development and Related Infrastructure: Derdepoortpark Extension 44 on Portions 426 and 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR, City of Tshwane (COT) Metropolitan Municipality.

Prepared for:

Zotec Developments (Pty) Ltd.

A SYSTEMS APPROACH APPLIED TO YOUR REQUIREMENTS

PROJECT INFORMATION

	Applicant and project information
Contact person:	Leon Botha
Physical address:	Castle Gate Offices, 478 Koedoesnek Ave, Waterkloof Ridge, Pretoria, 0181
Project title	The construction of the Proposed Residential Development and Related Infrastructure on Derdepoortpark Extension 44 on Portions 426 and 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR, City of Tshwane (COT) Metropolitan Municipality
Enterprise name:	
Business registration number:	2003/023822/07
Data	ile of the Environmental Accessment Develation on
Deta	lis of the Environmental Assessment Practitioner
Enterprise name:	Exigent Engineering Consultants CC
Contact person:	Jacolette Adam (EAP registration number: 2019/1040)
Contact details:	jacolette@exigent.co.za
Main report contributors and	Franciska Snyman (author)
roles:	Jacolette Adam (Reviewer)
	Project information
Gaut ref nr:	GAUT 002/23-24/E3600
Local Municipality:	City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality
Date of distribution on Draft	23 May - 23 June 2023
Basic Assessment Report	
Date of distribution on Final	24 August 2023
Basic Assessment Report	217/0900(2020
Buolo / looooninint hopoit	

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Zotec Developments (Pty) Ltd is proposing a residential development and related infrastructure (to be known as Derdepoortpark Extension 44) with a density of 120 units per hectare, therefore, 912 units in total, on Portion 426 and Portion 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326 - JR), which covers an extent of approximately 7.7894 ha. This application is for the clearing of indigenous vegetation, the construction of external infrastructure within 500 m of a wetland system, construction of stormwater infrastructure within 32 m of a watercourse, and the construction of the residential development. Part of the site is located on the proposed road reserve servitude area for the proposed K139 road alignment which has an area of approximately 3453m².

Exigent Engineering Consultants CC has been appointed to oversee all environmental processes regarding the proposed residential development. The current application is lodged in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations of 2014, as amended (Government Notice Regulations 326 of 2017), promulgated in terms of Section 24(4) and 25 of the National Environmental Management Act of 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998). A Basic Assessment process has been followed for activities triggered in terms of Listing Notice 1 of 2014, as amended (Government Notice Regulation 327 of 2017), for listed activities 27, as well as in terms of Listing Notice 3 of 2014, as amended (Government Notice Regulation 324 of 2017), for listed activities 4 and 12.

The following specialist assessments were conducted for the purpose of assessing the proposed residential development area:

- <u>Geotechnical assessment</u>: Laubscher Engineers Africa conducted a Geotechnical Investigation in 2008 to determine the engineering-geotechnical characteristics of the site. An additional Geotechnical Surficial Soils Investigation was conducted in 2023 by IntraSolutions to provide updated data for the project. Both specialist reports have been consulted for the purposes of this report. No rocky outcrops or shallow boulders were identified in the reports and the current investigations show that the site is underlain with relatively thick layers of colluvium and transported materials overlaying diabase.
- <u>Heritage assessment:</u> The paleontological sensitivity of the study area was found to be zero/insignificant and no further paleontological studies are required and no other heritage features were noted on site. The impact of the project on the heritage resources are low and it is recommended that the project can commence based on the condition that the recommendations of the specialist report are implemented as part of the Environmental Management Programme and based on approval from South African Heritage Resources Agency
- Ecological and Wetland Riparian assessment: According to the National Vegetation Map (SANBI, 2018), the proposed development lies within the Rand Highveld Grassland vegetation type of the Mesic Highveld Grassland Bioregion and the Grassland Biome as well as within the Marikana Thornveld vegetation type of the Central Bushveld Bioregion and the Savanna Biome. The National Biodiversity Assessment (NBA,2018), in terms of the IUCN red list of ecosystems, indicated the Ecosystem Threat status of the Marikana Thornveld vegetation types as Endangered. The National Biodiversity Assessment (NBA,2018), in terms of the IUCN red list of ecosystems, indicated the Ecosystem Threat status of the Rand Highveld Grassland as Vulnerable. Although the site is classified as having Marikana Thornveld Grassland and Rand Highveld Grassland, the site has undergone major transformation as it has been cleared and development has taken place on adjacent sites. The proposed development is not located within Critical Biodiversity Areas and Ecological Support Areas and no ridges were located within the site. The closest ridges are located approximately 2.4 km south-west of the site. The project area of influence is made up of a disturbed grassland vegetation type and alien species which is observed to have been transformed over time through anthropogenic and existing impacts such as local vegetation clearance and historical farming practices. After consultation of these various datasets, it was determined that no biodiversity priority areas exist within the study area. According to the Department of Environmental Affairs Screening tool the Terrestrial Biodiversity theme was classified as very high because the theme classified the study area as a Critically endangered ecosystem (CR). The animal theme was classified as medium as the theme indicated that there are seven (7) sensitive species which may occur onsite.

The specialist assessment observed that due to the amount of transformation of the site, no common bird species, small mammals, amphibians or reptiles were observed whilst walking the study area. The proposed study area does not possess any avian or amphibian habitats, hence clearing will not negatively affect these fauna species. The Department of Environmental Affairs screening tool indicated that the sensitivity for wetlands was very high. Upon site verification there were no wetlands or water courses located on site, however, as per the Department of Water and Sanitation regulatory area, the wetlands located within 500 m of the site were delineated and investigated at a desktop-level for the study area. The hydrological map in the Ecological study indicated that the Moretele River is located outside the site, however, still within the 500 m Department of Water and Sanitation regulatory area. The developer proposes stormwater services installations that will transect into the 32m buffer of the Moretele River, located across from the site.

The impact assessment undertaken for the proposed residential development indicated that the main negative impacts of the construction phase of the project would be the impact on the extent and integrity of Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld with reference to potential loss, impact on species composition and structure of vegetation, impact on ecosystem threat status, impact on explicit subtypes in the vegetation, impacts associated with the loss of the riparian area, possible sedimentation and erosion, infestation of alien invasive plant species and hydrological impacts. The main negative impacts anticipated for the operational phase of the proposed residential development included the creation of job opportunities and additional housing prospects, increase in the local economy of the area, and in turn the provincial economy. A cumulative impact of this project would be additional vegetation clearing and ultimately change in land use required to allow for residential development. However, proper urban designs, which accommodates the natural features of the study area, by means of design and layout, enhances the use of the open space in the proposed development within a built-up urban environment.

The Public Participation Process is a critical aspect of any Environmental Impact Assessment Process. As part of the pre-application consultation process, stakeholders and pre-identified interested and affected parties were notified of the intent of the application process in terms of the National Environmental Management Act of 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998). The main concerns raised during the pre-application consultation process included the lack of infrastructure in the area and that upgrades of existing services are required. No further comments were received from interested and affected parties during the review period after the Draft Basic Assessment Report was made available, however, stakeholder comments have been received. GDARD comments have been included in this report.

Based on the findings of the specialist assessments and the impact assessment, the Environmental Assessment Practitioner is of the opinion that the Environmental Authorisation for the proposed residential development can be granted provided that the mitigation measures identified and included within the Environmental Management Programme are adhered to. All recommendations as per the various specialist assessments must also be implemented on site, prior to, during and after the construction phase as stipulated in the respective documents. Furthermore, it is requested that the Environmental Authorisation be valid for 10 years.

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

BA BAR CA CARA CBA CRR DEA DEFF DWS EA EAP EAPASA EIA EMF EMPr ESA GDARD GN GNR I&APS IDP NEMA NEMBA NHRA NHRA NHRA NHRA NHRA NHRA NHRA NHR	Basic Assessment Basic Assessment Report Competent Authority Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act of 1983 (Act No. 43 of 1983) Critical Biodiversity Areas Comments and Reponses Report Department of Environmental Affairs Department of Environment, Forestry and Fisheries Department of Vater and Sanitation Environmental Authorisation Environmental Authorisation Environmental Assessment Practitioner Environmental Assessment Practitioner Environmental Masgement Framework Environmental Management Framework Environmental Management Programme Ecological Support Areas Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development Government Notice Government Notice Regulation Interested and Affected Parties Integrated Development Plan National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act of 2004 (Act No. 10 of 2004) National Heritage Resources Act of 1998 (Act No. 25 of 1998) National Heritage Resources S South African Council of Natural Scientific Professions South African Council of Natural Scientific Professions South African Heritage Resources Agency Traffic Impact Assessment Municipal Spatial Development Framework
TIA MSDF WUL	Traffic Impact Assessment Municipal Spatial Development Framework Water Use License
WOLA	Waler use Livense Application

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECT	ION A: ACTIVITY INFORMATION	10
1.	Proposal or Development Description	10
2.	Applicable legislation, policies and/or guidelines	10
3. 4.	Physical Size Of The Activity	27
5.	Site Access.	27
1.	Layout or Route Plan	28
2.	Site Photographs	29
3.	Facility Illustration	29
SECT	ION B: DESCRIPTION OF RECEIVING ENVIRONMENT	33
1. 2	Property Description	33 33
2. 3.	Gradient of the Site	34
4.	Location in Landscape	34
5.	Groundwater, Soil and Geological Stability of the Site	34
6. 7	Agriculture	34
7. 8	Land Use Character of Surrounding Area	30
9.	Socio-Economic Context	44
10.	Cultural/Historical Features	45
SECT	ION C: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (SECTION 41)	47
1.	Local Authority Participation	47
2.	Consultation with Other Stakeholders	47
3. 1	General Public Participation Requirements	48
4.		40
SECT	ION D: RESOURCE USE AND PROCESS DETAILS	50
1. 2	Waste, Enluent, and Emission Management	50 51
3.	Power Supply	52
4.	Energy Efficiency	52
SECT	ION E: IMPACT ASSESSMENT	53
1.	Issues Raised by Interested and Affected Parties	53
2.	Impacts That May Result From The Construction And Operational Phase	53
З. Д	Cumulative Impacts	10 88
5.	Environmental Impact Statement	68
6.	Impact Summary of the Proposal or Preferred Alternative	69
7.	Spatial Development Tools	70
8. 0	Recommendation of the Practitioner	70
9. Uni	The Needs and Desirability of the Proposed residential development (As per Notice 792 Of 2012, of the dated Version of this Guideline)	71
10.	The Period for Which the Environmental Authorisation is Required (Consider When the Activity is Expect	ted
to b	e Concluded)	71
11.	Environmental Management Programme (EMPR) (Must Include Post Construction Monitoring Requireme	ents
And	d when These will Be Concluded.)	/ 1
SECT	ION F: APPENDIXES	72
1	Appendix A: Site plan(s) Annendix B: Photographs	21 רד
	Appendix C: Facility illustration(s)	72
	Appendix D: Route position information	72
1	Appendix E: Public participation information	72
	Appendix F: Water use license(s) authorisation, SAHRA information, service letters from municipalities, wa	ter
	supply information	12

Appendix G: Specialist reports	
Appendix H: EMPr	72
Appendix I: Other information	72

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Draft layout as per proposal	21
Figure 2: Proposed Road and intersection upgrades as per Traffic Impact Report	22
Figure 3: Proposed site access as per the Proposal	23
Figure 4: Proposed site access as per the Alternative	24
Figure 5: Stormwater Environment Plan drafted by Civil Concept	25
Figure 6: Detail of stormwater outlet structure	26
Figure 7: The 1:50 000 Topographic map of the proposed residential development site	30
Figure 8: Site layout plan for the proposed residential development indicating all services infrastructure (including water, sewer, electricity, stormwater connections and site access) and sensitive features identified within the proposed residential development site. (1:500).	31
Figure 9: Site layout plan for the proposed residential development indicating all services infrastructure (including water, sewer, electricity, stormwater connections and site access) and sensitive features identified within the proposed residential development site. (1:16 000)	32
Figure 10: Agricultural sensitivity of the proposed residential development area (DEA Screening Tool)	35
Figure 11. GAPA 4 Agricultural Sensitivity -Low	35
Figure 12: Sensitivity Map	13
Figure 13: Surface hydrology of the area within proximity to the proposed development area (NFEPA, 2012; NBA, 2018).	43
Figure 14: Photographic representation of the modern ruins and modern foundations of demolished ruins taken near the eastern edge of the project area	16

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Listed activities triggered by the proposed residential development in terms of the EIA Regulations of 2	2014,
as amended	12
Table 2. Specialist assessments proposed by the DEA Screening tool for the proposed residential developmen	t 56



Basic Assessment Report in terms of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998), as amended, and the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations, 2014 (Version 1/2022)

Kindly note that:

- 1. This Basic Assessment Report is the standard report required by GDARD in terms of the EIA Regulations, 2014.
- 2. This template is current as of April 2022. It is the responsibility of the EAP to ascertain whether subsequent versions of the template have been published or produced by the competent authority.
- 3. A draft Basic Assessment Report must be submitted, for purposes of comments within a period of thirty (30) days, to all State Departments administering a law relating to a matter likely to be affected by the activity to be undertaken.
- 4. A draft Basic Assessment Report must be submitted, for purposes of comments within a period of thirty (30) days, to a Competent Authority (uploaded to the EIA online system) empowered in terms of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998), as amended to consider and decide on the application. The EIA online system can be accessed at https://eia.gauteng.gov.za.
- 5. Five (5) copies (3 hard copies and 2 CDs-PDF) of the final report and attachments must be handed in at offices of the relevant competent authority, as detailed below.
- 6. A copy (PDF) of the final report and attachments must be uploaded to the EIA online system. The EIA online system can be accessed at https://eia.gauteng.gov.za.
- 7. Draft and final reports submitted in terms of the National Environmental Management: Waste Act, 2008 (Act No. 59 of 2008) must be emailed to <u>environmentsue@gauteng.gov.za</u>.
- The report must be typed within the spaces provided in the form. The size of the spaces provided is not necessarily indicative of the amount of information to be provided. The report is in the form of a table that can extend itself as each space is filled with typing.
- 9. Selected boxes must be indicated by a cross and, when the form is completed electronically, must also be highlighted.
- 10. An incomplete report may lead to an application for environmental authorisation or Waste Management License being refused.
- 11. Any report that does not contain a titled and dated full colour large scale layout plan of the proposed activities including a coherent legend, overlain with the sensitivities found on site may lead to an application for environmental authorization or Waste Management License being refused.
- 12. The use of "not applicable" in the report must be done with circumspection because if it is used in respect of material information that is required by the competent authority for assessing the application, it may result in the application for environmental authorisation or Waste Management License being refused.
- 13. The applicant must fill in all relevant sections of this form. Incomplete applications will not be processed. The applicant will be notified of the missing information in the acknowledgement letter that will be sent within 10 days of receipt of the application.
- 14. Unless protected by law, and clearly indicated as such, all information filled in on this application will become public information on receipt by the competent authority. The applicant/EAP must provide any interested and affected party with the information contained in this application on request, during any stage of the application process.
- 15. Although pre-application meeting with the Competent Authority is optional, applicants are advised to have these meetings prior to submission of application to seek guidance from the Competent Authority.

DEPARTMENTAL DETAILS

Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development Attention: Administrative Unit of the Sustainable Utilisation of the Environment (SUE) Branch P.O. Box 8769 Johannesburg 2000

Ground floor, Umnotho House, 56 Eloff Street, Johannesburg

Administrative Unit telephone number: (011) 240 3051/3052 Department central telephone number: (011) 240 2500

	(For official use only)		
NEAS Reference Number:				
File Reference Number:				
Application Number:				
Date Received:				

If this BAR has not been submitted within 90 days of receipt of the application by the competent authority and permission was not requested to submit within 140 days, please indicate the reasons for not submitting within time frame.

Is a closure plan applicable for this application and has it been included in this report?

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

if not, state reasons for not including the closure plan.

The proposed residential development is a housing and associated infrastructure development which aims to provide
housing solutions for current and future generations. Therefore, no closure of the proposed residential development
is expected. Should decommissioning of the infrastructure be required in the future, the promulgated regulations at
that time will be applicable and will be followed.

Has a draft report for this application been submitted to a competent authority and all State Departments administering a law relating to a matter likely to be affected as a result of this activity?

Is a list of the State Departments referred to above attached to this report including their full contact details and contact person?

If no, state reasons for not attaching the list.

Have State Departments including the competent authority commented?

If no, why?

SECTION A: ACTIVITY INFORMATION

1. PROPOSAL OR DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION

Project title (must be the same name as per application form): The construction of the Proposed Residential Development and related infrastructure of Derdepoortpark Extension 44 on Portions 426 and 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR, City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality.

Select the appropriate box				
The application is for an upgrade of an existing development	The application is for a new development	✓	Other, specify	
Does the activity also require any authorisation other than NEMA EIA authorisation?				
YES NO				

If yes, describe the legislation and the Competent Authority administering such legislation

The proposed residential development will require authorisation from the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) for civil works within 500 m of a wetland for civil works within 32m of a watercourse and a residential development within the 500 m Regulatory Area (as defined by Government Notice (Government Notice (GN) 509 of 2016)) of a wetland. A Water Use Licence (WUL) in terms of Section 21 of the National Water Act (Act No. 36 of 1998), will be required.

If yes, have you applied for the authorisation(s)?

If yes, have you received approval(s)? (attach in appropriate appendix)

2. APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, POLICIES AND/OR GUIDELINES

List all legislation, policies and/or guidelines of any sphere of government that are applicable to the application as contemplated in the EIA regulations:

Title of legislation, policy or guideline:	Administering authority:	Promulgation Date:
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act No 108 of 1996)	National & Provincial and local government	4 February 1997
National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (NEMA, Act No. 107 of 1998 as amended).	Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (GDARD)	27 November 1998
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations of 2014, as amended (Government Notice Regulations (GNR) 326 of 2017)	GDARD	4 December 2014 7 April 2017
National Water Act, 1998 (NWA, Act No 36 of 1998) as amended	Department of Water and Sanitation	26 August 1998 1 October 1998
National Heritage Resources Act of 1999 (NHRA, Act no 25 of 1999)	Provincial Heritage Resources Agency Gauteng (PHRAG)	28 April 1999
The Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act of 1983 (CARA, Act No. 43 of 1983)	National Department of Fisheries, Forestry and Environment (DFFE)	27 April 1983
National Forest Act of 1998 (NFA, Act no. 84 of 1998)	DFFE	20 October 1998
National Environmental Management Biodiversity Act of 2004 (NEMBA, Act No 10 of 2004)	GDARD	31 May 2004
The Development Principles of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act of 2013 (SPLUMA, Act No. 16 of 2013)	City of Tshwane (COT) Metropolitan Municipality	4 July 2014
 All relevant Provincial regulations, municipal by-laws and ordinances which includes: NEMA Regulations 2014 and 2017 Gauteng Environmental Management Framework (2015) The Gauteng Draft Red Data Policy The Gauteng Draft Ridges Policy; Protection of Agricultural Land in Gauteng Revised Policy (June 2006) Cot Metropolitan Spatial Development Framework 2021 	Listed documents will be consulted and any guidelines and/or restrictions found will be incorporated into this assessment.	Various dates

YES

YES

NO

NO

٠	CoT Metropolitan Municipality's Open Space Policy	
•	CoT Integrated Development Plan 2021-2026	

Description of compliance wit	h the relevant legislation,	policy or guideline:
-------------------------------	-----------------------------	----------------------

Legislation, policy of guideline	Description of compliance
Constitution of the Republic of South Act (No. 108 of 1996)	This assessment is based on the principle that everyone has 'the right to a healthy environment and the right to have the environment protected' as per Chapter 2, Section 24 of the Constitution.
National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998)	The Environmental Authorisation (EA) for the proposed residential development is lawfully applied for in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations of 2014, as amended (GNR 326 of 2017) promulgated under NEMA. The conditions on the EA, if approved, will be adhered to.
National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act No. 25 of 1999)	The assessment of the site for heritage resources has been undertaken in terms and respect of the National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act No. 25 of 1999) as amended (NHRA).
National Water Act, 1998 (Act no. 36 of 1998) as amended	The proposed residential development will be within 100 m of a delineated watercourse.
National Forest Act, 1998 (Act no. 84 of 1998)	An Ecological Impact Statement (Appendix H4) is attached to the BAR
National Environmental Management Biodiversity Act, 2004 (Act 43 of 1983)	An Ecological Impact Statement (Appendix H4) is attached to the BAR
The Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 (Act 43 of 1983) (CARA)	No activities triggered in terms of the CARA
The Development Principles of the Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act, 2013 (Act No. 16 of 2013)	Comply with the principles of Section 7 in terms of spatial planning land development and land use management.
 All relevant Provincial regulations, Municipal by-laws and ordinances This includes: NEMA Regulations 2014 and 2017 Gauteng Environmental Management Framework (2015) The Gauteng Red Data Policy The Gauteng Ridges Policy Protection of Agricultural Land in Gauteng Revised Policy (June 2006) CoT Metropolitan Municipality Spatial Development Framework 2021 CoT Metropolitan Municipality's Open Space Policy CoT Integrated Development Plan 2021-2026 	 The GDARD red data policy provides methods of identifying and management of the Red Data species within the province. The Protection of Agricultural Land in Gauteng Revised Policy provides methods of identifying and management of the agricultural lands within the province; CoT Metropolitan Municipality SDF guides the development within the City boundaries. CoT Metropolitan Municipality's Open Space Framework guides the development and management of the City open spaces. CoT IDP guides the development in terms of operational planning of the city

Description of listed activities triggered for the purpose of the Application in terms of the EIA Regulations of 2014, as amended (GNR326, 2017)

Table 1. Listed activities triggered by the proposed residential development in terms of the EIA Regulations of 2014, as amended.

Indicate the number of the relevant Government Notice:	Activity No (s) (relevant notice): e.g. Listing notices 1, 2 or 3	Describe each listed activity as per the wording in the listing notices:	Describe each listed activity as per the wording relative to the project:
GN R327 - Listing Notice 1 of 2014, as amended	27	The clearance of an area of one hectares or more, but less than 20 hectares of indigenous vegetation.	The proposed residential development and related infrastructure will require the clearance of approximately 7.7984 ha of indigenous vegetation.
GN R327 – Listing Notice 1 of 2014, as amended	45	The expansion of infrastructure for the bulk transportation of water or storm water where the existing infrastructure— (i) has an internal diameter of 0,36 metres or more; or excluding where such expansion— (aa) relates to transportation of water or storm water within a road reserve or (bb) will occur within an urban area.	There is limited existing municipal stormwater systems within Intaba Street, the road which will be used for the site access. The developer proposes to upgrade this road and construct the stormwater infrastructure required for Intaba Street within the road reserve, within an urban area. However, part of the stormwater expansion will be located outside of the Urban Development Zone and outside of a road reserve. The developer proposes a 1500 mm ø be constructed as a boundary service by replacing the existing 450mm ø stormwater pipe. This proposed stormwater will connect to existing stormwater infrastructure in the southern corner of Intaba street, after which it will be directed underneath Baviaanspoort Road and be discharged via a new stormwater outlet structure that will be located within roughly 28m from the Moretele River,. The 3m stormwater servitude will need to be registered over Portion 20 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR as well as R/23 of the Farm Derdepoort. The length of the 1500mm ø pipe has a length of 138m which will discharge on the edge of the riparian zone through a stormwater outlet structure.
GN R327 - Listing Notice 1 of 2014, as amended	56	The widening of a road by more than 6 metres, or the lengthening of a road by more than 1 kilometre— (i) where the existing reserve is wider than 13,5 meters	Site Access to Derdepoortpark Ext. 44 : Both of the following options for the site access will widen part of Intaba Street where site access is planned. Option 1: The developer would be responsible to construct the recommended butterfly-type access to the subject township. To implement this access configuration, a short right turning lane on the northern approach and a short acceleration lane on the receiving end of the southern approach is to be constructed. The access (north-western) approach is to comprise of two inbound lanes with two outbound lanes and a minimum stacking distance of at least 25m.

Indicate the number of the relevant Government Notice:	Activity No (s) (relevant notice): e.g. Listing notices 1, 2 or 3	Describe each listed activity as per the wording in the listing notices:	Describe each listed activity as per the wording relative to the project:
			Option 2: The developer would be responsible to construct the recommended implementation of a traffic circle with an outside diameter in the order of 30m with single circulating lanes. The recommended stacking at the access is recommended to be at least 25m in total. It is our recommendation that the traffic circle geometry be approved and implemented. This option will also widen Intaba Street
			Although both proposed options would have sufficient capacity to accommodate the anticipated traffic, the traffic circle would also induce traffic calming to some extent.
			According to information provided through email correspondence with Dhubecon Consulting Engineers, Intaba Street has a road reserve of 20m.
			Baviaanspoort Road (M15) / Intaba Street: At the eastern approach of this intersection, road widening would be required to implement a short right turning lane with a dedicated continuous left turning slip-lane. In addition to the geometric upgrades, it is further proposed that this intersection should become signalized by the developer.
			NOTE: It is, however, important to note that the signalization and geometric upgrades as per Drawing No. 0637/CL/04 would become redundant once the SANRAL upgrades are constructed, specifically the extension of Intaba Street in a southern direction which is planned to form a new intersection with Baviaanspoort Road / K139 about 600m south of the site. This planned full intersection will replace the existing T-intersection between Baviaanspoort Road and Intaba Street, i.e., this intersection will be closed off (see Appendix F4 for Traffic Impact Report). Once this intersection is constructed, it is expected that all of the traffic traveling through the existing T-intersection between Intaba Street & Baviaanspoort Road would redistribute to this new intersection instead.
			The signalization and geometric upgrades proposed at this T-intersection would only be required if the subject development occurs before the SANRAL upgrades or if the SANRAL upgrades are delayed for some reason. These signals would therefore only be temporarily active (or could perhaps never be installed if the SANRAL

Indicate the number of	Activity No (s) (relevant	Describe each listed activity as per the wording in the listing notices:	Describe each listed activity as per the wording relative to the project:
the relevant Government	notice): e.g. Listing		
Notice:	notices 1, 2		
	or 3		
			upgrades are implemented according to schedule) until the intersection is replaced by the newly planned full intersection further south.
			According to information provided through email correspondence with Dhubecon Consulting Engineers, this intersection has a road reserve of 25 m to 28 m and therefore the road will be widened by more than 6m as it is currently around 8 m wide.
			Sefako Makgatho Drive (R513) / Intaba Street / Kameeldrift Road: It is proposed that the developer implement a left turning slip-way at the southern approach of the intersection. Along with this geometric upgrade, updated road markings and timing plans would also be required. The existing road appears to be roughly 12 m wide and will be upgraded for the intersection to make use of the 24 m road reserve.
			NOTE: The planned SANRAL upgrades at this intersection would comprise of the implementation of additional through lanes in each direction on Sefako Makgatho Drive. In total, there would be four through lanes traveling per direction on Sefako Makgatho Drive. If, however, the subject development occurs before the SANRAL upgrades, then the left turning slip-way would have to be implemented before the SANRAL upgrades as well. This could also imply that when the SANRAL road upgrades are implemented, then this left turning slip-way would have to be reconstructed by SANRAL, if Sefako Makgatho Drive is widened in a southern direction to accommodate the additional through lanes instead of widening in a northern direction by reducing the width of the median island.
GN R324 -	12	The clearance of an area of 300 square	According to the National Vegetation Map (SANBI, 2018), the proposed development lies within the Rand
Listing Notice		metres or more of indigenous vegetation,	Highveld Grassland vegetation type of the Mesic Highveld Grassland Bioregion and the Grassland Biome along
3 of 2014, as		in Gauteng i) Within any critically	with the Marikana Thornveld vegetation type of the Central Bushveld Bioregion and the Savanna Biome. The
amended		endangered or endangered ecosystem	National Biodiversity Assessment (NBA,2018), in terms of the IUCN red list of ecosystems, indicated the
		listed in terms of section 52 of the NEMBA	Ecosystem Threat status of the Marikana Thornveld vegetation types as Endangered, and Rand Highveld
		or prior to the publication of such a list,	Grassland as Vulnerable.
		within an area that has been identified as	

Indicate the number of the relevant Government Notice:	Activity No (s) (relevant notice): e.g. Listing notices 1, 2 or 3	Describe each listed activity as per the wording in the listing notices:	Describe each listed activity as per the wording relative to the project:
		critically endangered in the National Spatial Biodiversity Assessment 2004;	The proposed residential development will require the clearance of approximately 7.7984 ha of indigenous vegetation which is located within the Endangered Marikana Thornveld Ecosystem type, and the Vulnerable Rand Highveld Grassland Ecosystem type as classified by the NEMBA: Ecosystems list. Road and stormwater upgrades/construction will also take place in an area classed as a threatened ecosystem as discussed above.

3. ALTERNATIVES

Describe the proposal and alternatives that are considered in this application. Alternatives should include a consideration of all possible means by which the purpose and need of the proposed activity could be accomplished. The determination of whether the site or activity (including different processes etc.) or both is appropriate needs to be informed by the specific circumstances of the activity and its environment.

The no-go option must in all cases be included in the assessment phase as the baseline against which the impacts of the other alternatives are assessed. **Do not** include the no go option into the alternative table below.

Note: After receipt of this report the competent authority may also request the applicant to assess additional alternatives that could possibly accomplish the purpose and need of the proposed activity if it is clear that realistic alternatives have not been considered to a reasonable extent.

Please describe the process followed to reach (decide on) the list of alternatives below

Alternative layouts:

- Alternative layouts were drawn up based on best practice engineering design methods as determined by the engineering and township development team as part of this process.
- A critical component of the layout assessment is to understand the market within the area where the proposed development will occur in order for the proposed development to respond to the market requirements.

Design alternatives:

- The engineers and project team evaluated site and soil conditions of the proposed sewer line in order to optimize the location and alignment.
- The proposed route alignment also had to consider joining existing services.

Provide a description of the alternatives considered

No.	Alternative type, either alternative: site on property, properties, activity, design, technology, energy, operational or other (provide details of "other")	Description
1	Proposal	<u>Proposed Layout, site access and services</u> : The preferred development alternative entails the construction of the Derdepoortpark Extension 44 residential township with a density of 912 units with a density of 120 units/ hectare on Portion 426 and Portion 679 on the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR, CoT Metropolitan Municipality, and related infrastructure. The development will be enhanced by the provision of private open spaces and play areas, to provide prospective residents with a safe space to relax. The preferred alternative for the proposed project has been selected in such a way so as to present an optimal design (in terms of economic preference) to the developer. The area that the access will occupy is estimated as 485.7 m ²
		The subject site's developable area is approximately 7.93 ha in extent and the proposed township will be known as Derdepoortpark Ext. 44. township and zoned as 'Residential 4' with a proposed development density of 120 units/ ha. The expected target market would be the middle-income market, similar to other nearby residential developments/ complexes in the area. The proposed township is bounded by Baviaanspoort Road (M15/ Future K139) to the west, also known as the Moloto Road (R573) further north of the site. Intaba Street borders the site to the south-east and Sefako Makgatho Drive (R513/ K14) is located just north of the site. It is important to note that the implementation of the future K139 (Baviaanspoort / Moloto Road) west of the site has been taken over from Gautrans by the South African National Roads Agency who are planning significant upgrades on the majority of this road as well as other roads in the study area. These upgrades include the realignment and rehabilitation of existing roads as well as the implementation of a new grade-separated interchange between Baviaanspoort Road / Moloto Road and Sefako Makgatho Drive, near the north-western corner of the site. Furthermore, an entirely new north-south

road between Baviaanspo			
forms part of the implem information received from I responsible for the design these upgrades could start	ort Road a lientation o KBK Engine s of these i t as early a	nd Stormvoël Ro f the K139 pro eers (Pty) Ltd, wh upgrades, consta s mid-2023.	bad is planned (M8), which vincial road. According to no are the design engineers ruction of the first phase of
SANRAL has provided a le Appendix F5 to this report.	etter of app	roval of the TIA	report and is attached as
As per the Roads and Stor located in Intaba Street. A (TIA) a single access to the classified as a Class 4b re position of the access will Development Plan for the access will be located on t and that there is ample si particular. A conceptual la 0637/CL/02a (TIA) in wh implemented. To implement western side of Intaba Street the northern approach and approach of the access int	rmwater rep s indicated le developrisidential co l be confirr developme he south-ea ght distance yout of the nich it is p nt this acce bet will be n d a short re resection c	port, a single site in Figure 2 the nent is proposed llector road past ned as part of t ent. It can, howe astern boundary e available in al proposed access roposed that a ss configuration, equired so that a ecciving acceler an be implement	e access is indicated and is Traffic Impact Assessment d off Intaba Street which is t the site. Note that the final the submission of the Site ever, be confirmed that the of the site on Intaba Street Il directions on this road in as is shown in Drawing No. butterfly-type access be local road widening on the a short right turning lane on ation lane on the southern ted.
Decider#-1	Dention	00	Dertion 670
Residential		20	
Parameter			
Contributing area	37 410 m	2	41 940m ²
Total area of residential a	area: 79,35	0m ²	
Boundary Services			
Boundary Services		Size/width/len	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road		Size/width/len 3 940.48m ²	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay	nine	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ²	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater	pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ²	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – E	pipe xternal Sei	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – E Roads and stormwater	pipe xternal Ser	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – E Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway	pipe xternal Ser	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a	gth/area fset-able it least 1.8m wide
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – Ex Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4	pipe xternal See m ²	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of	gth/area fset-able it least 1.8m wide
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – Ex Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4 675 mm dia stormwater	pipe xternal Set m ² pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a 60m	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – E Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4 675 mm dia stormwater 1500 mm dia stormwater	pipe xternal See m ² pipe pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a 60m 138m	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – Ex Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4 675 mm dia stormwater 1500 mm dia stormwater	pipe xternal Sel m ² pipe pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a 60m 138m	gth/area
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – Ei Roads and stormwater Pedestrian walkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4 675 mm dia stormwater 1500 mm dia stormwater Provincial Roads - Externation	pipe xternal See m ² pipe pipe pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a 60m 138m ces – Non-offse	gth/area fset-able it least 1.8m wide
Boundary Services Item Intaba Road Taxi Bay 1500mm dia Stormwater Municipal Services – Example Roads and stormwater Pedestrian valkway Pedestrian crossing 37.4 675 mm dia stormwater 1500 mm dia stormwater 1500 mm dia stormwater Sefako Makgatho / Kame Intersection	pipe xternal Ser m ² pipe pipe pipe pipe pipe	Size/width/len 3 940.48m ² 80m ² 399m ² vices – Non-of 531m and a 60m 138m ces – Non-offse d 88.29m ²	gth/area fset-able t least 1.8m wide et-able

	Paved Sidewalks: It is recommended that a new paved sidewalk of at least 1.8m wide be constructed along the site's frontage on Intaba Street. This proposed new sidewalk is shown conceptually in Drawing No. 0637/CL/01 of Draft 2 TIA.
	Public Transport Layby: To make provision for users of public transport, it is recommended that a set of public transport laybys be constructed at the site's access intersection on Intaba Street (see Drawing No. 0637/CL/01 of TIA).
	The site currently has no services installed, therefore the developer will be responsible for constructing a 675 mm ø pipeline to connect to the existing culvert under the Baviaanspoort Road. This will be located north west of the development and falls within an Ecological Support Area along the Moretele River. Existing stormwater located along Intaba Street will be upgraded and will discharge within 32m of the Moretele River, outside the edge of the riparian zone
	According to the Stormwater Environment Plan (C3034-ENV-001) drafted by Civil Concepts (Appendix D 4) the extent of the footprint impacted during construction will have an area of 1458m ² in the riparian area. As per this plan, stormwater outlet structure will consist of a brick structure with boulders acting as energy breakers, with an overflow area consisting of wetland vegetation and bio degradable geotextile. Below the overflow area an earth and boulder berm which will act as a silt trap and attenuation structure will be constructed. Refer to Figure 6.
	Appendix D of this BAR provides the services detailing for the proposed residential development.
	The Roads and Stormwater Bulk Service Report could only be submitted for approval after receipt of the approval of the Traffic Impact Assessment Report by SANRAL and Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport (GPDRT). These approvals have been received (refer to Appendix F 7 and F 8) and were submitted as part of the submission for approval of the Roads and Stormwater Bulk Service Report to the City of Tshwane. The submission took place on 17 August 2023.
	For electrical supply a new cable is proposed to be installed from Pumulani primary substation to the proposed township. The nearest 11kV sub-stations is Phumulani Sub Station which will supply the development. The preliminary load forecast for this new development is in the order of 2 750 kVA. The proposed route is illustrated in .
	The cable will connect at the substation and run south and cross over the Hartbeesspruit at 25°40'46.81"S and 28°17'26.11"E; run further south where it will eventually cut across Sefako Makgatho Drive where, it will run towards the east; then run along Kameeldroring Drive where it will connect at north-eastern edge of the property boundary. The proposed cable route will be roughly 3km long.
	Tshwane Electricity has confirmed that the required load of 2745kVA is available at Pumulani 132/11kV substation. Council does not allow for the distribution of the comments until there is an agreement in place but a declaration has been provided by the Electrical engineers. (Refer to Appendix D 8)
	Ownership of the infrastructure, that is to be installed as part of the external electrical services for this township, will remain property of the local municipality.

		The City of Tshwane: Water and Sanitation Department has approved the Water and Sewer services Report compiled by Civil Concepts. Once the Township application and the conditions of establishment have been approved, the services agreement will be drafted and the construction plans can be submitted for approval. (Appendix D5) Proposed upgrades to the water network for water supply to the development:
		The developer will be responsible for constructing a 250 mm ø uPVC pipe from the southern boundary of the development up to the existing 250 mm ø uPVC pipe in Intaba Road. All water pipes will be handed over to City of Tshwane upon completion.
		The proposed development will generate a sewer demand of 513.835 k ℓ /day. This equates to an instantaneous peak dry weather flow of 14.871 ℓ /s, and an instantaneous peak wet weather flow of 17.10 ℓ /s.
		The nearest Bulk Sewer or connection is approximately 250m to the west of the development. A 400 mm ø uPVC collector runs along Sefako Makgatho Drive and then turns south towards a 500 mm ø uPVC Bulk line which runs under Baviaanspoort Street from the development to the outfall sewer. No upgrades are required to the sewer network. The developer will be responsible to break into the manhole on the 400 mm ø pipe in order to obtain a connection. A 3m servitude will be registered over Portion 20 of the Farm Derdepoort in favour of municipal services.
		All work to be handed over to City of Tshwane
2	Alternative 1: Alternative type of access to site	As shown in Drawing No. 0637/CL/02b TIA), it has been proposed to implement a traffic circle with an outside diameter of approximately 30 m as the intersection's control. The capacity analyses, as provided in Section 5.3 and 5.4 of the TIA report (Appendix F4), indicates that both site entrance options (option 1 described above) would have sufficient capacity to accommodate the traffic design. The final intersection control to be implemented, i.e, a butterfly intersection or traffic circle, would then be subject to the authorities' preferred option.
		Two inbound lanes and two outbound lanes are recommended for the access. Important to note is that the access will be security controlled and therefore adequate stacking distance should be provided to ensure that inbound vehicles queuing at the security gate do not impact on the through traffic along Intaba Street.
		For this purpose, <i>Traffic Methods for Highways 16 Vol 2</i> (Committee Draft 2.0, October 2019), was used to determine the required stacking distance for this site access. The following assumptions were made: Total development trip generations for weekday PM peak entering the
		development are 433vph; Service flow rate of 450 veh/hr was assumed for 'Swipe magnetic card'; it is expected that this system will be used or something very similar, such as a biometric system; and Peak hour factor (PHF) = 0.85. The traffic ratio percentage calculated to be about 113% (for the 90th percentile queue), which then according to Table 33 of the THM 16 (Vol 2) a theoretical storage length of three (3) vehicles (approximately 20m) is required for a double entry channel. It is recommended, however, that a minimum stacking distance of
		25m be provided which would allow for about four (4) light passenger vehicles to queue comfortably without stacking onto Intaba Street. Given the extent of the

		development this recommended stacking distance is considered appropriate. In order to accommodate emergency and service vehicles, it is also necessary to ensure that at least one traffic lane (inbound or outbound) has a width of at least 3.5m wide with a total free-space of 4.5m and a height clearance of 5.2m, or as per the requirements of the local authority.
3	Alternative 2: Stormwater management	During the project planning and design phase, the engineering team evaluated the implementation of on-site attenuation facilities. However, after review of the CoT by-laws, it became apparent that CoT does not approve on-site attenuation facilities hence alternative stormwater management had to be implemented. The on-site attenuation could therefore not be implemented and the stormwater management had to divert to the stream.













In the event that no alternative(s) has/have been provided, a motivation must be included in the table below.

Activities alternatives:

- As the site is optimally located for a high density residential development, no other activities with relation to the proposed densities have been proposed for the development site.
- Activities proposed for the development of a residential township included the development of related infrastructure such as road upgrades, stormwater, sewer, water connection and electrical connection and route.
- Two alternatives have been provided above. The first alternative referred to an alternative site entrance and the second referred to alternative stormwater management.

Site alternatives:

- As the site is optimally located and the applicant is the owner of the properties, no alternative site location is proposed.
- Additionally, the applicant is well versed and has vested it's interests in residential developments, development alternatives were not evaluated.
- Thus far, the only alternatives identified have been a variation in the site access details, the exact location of the site access must be finalised, and the stormwater management. No site alternatives have been identified for the proposed residential development as this location have been identified as an optimal position for the activities proposed.
- This development site is located within close proximity/adjacent to numerous other similar housing developments and
 as such is aligned with the sense of place.

4. PHYSICAL SIZE OF THE ACTIVITY

Indicate the total physical size (footprint) of the proposal as well as alternatives. Footprints are to include all new infrastructure (roads, services etc), impermeable surfaces and landscaped areas:

	Size of the activity:
Proposed activity (Total environmental (landscaping, parking, etc.) and the building footprint)	7.7894 ha
Alternatives:	
Alternative 1 (if any)	7.7894 ha
Alternative 2 (if any)	1458m ²
	Ha/ m ²
or, for linear activities:	
	Length of the activity:
Proposed activity	
Alternatives:	
Alternative 1 (if any)	
Alternative 2 (if any)	
	m/km
Indicate the size of the site(s) or servitudes (within which the above footprints will occur):	
	Size of the site/servitude:
Proposed activity	0.3453 ha
Alternatives:	
Alternative 1 (if any)	

Alternative 2 (if any)

5. SITE ACCESS Proposal

Does ready access to the site exist, or is access directly from an existing road? If NO, what is the distance over which a new access road will be built Describe the type of access road planned:

Site access is planned on Portion 679 from Intaba Street with a Priority stop controlled butterfly T-intersection with free-flow conditions prevailing along Intaba Street. The proposed site access configuration will have adequate capacity to accommodate the anticipated development trips and will ensure that inbound vehicles do not impact on the movement of other vehicles travelling along Intaba Street.

The implementation of the butterfly configuration will also allow for traffic turning right out of the site to make use of the acceleration lane that would allow them to safely merge with the through traffic on Intaba Street. Intaba Street's condition past the site's frontage has significantly deteriorated over the years and it would only degrade further with the added development traffic, latent rights traffic and future growth in the background traffic. Given these poor existing road conditions, it is proposed that the developer rehabilitate this road back to a standard Class 4b road past the site's frontage.

The section of Intaba Street to be rehabilitated by the developer is approximately 480 m in length. The rehabilitation of Intaba Street also forms part of SANRAL's planned upgrades in the area and as a result, the rehabilitation of this road should only be the responsibility of the developer if this development occurs before the implementation of the SANRAL upgrades. The access (western) approach is to comprise of two inbound lanes with two outbound lanes and a minimum stacking distance of at least 20 m. Apart from the rehabilitation of the road as discussed above, this road is also set to be extended in a southbound direction from the south-eastern corner of the site. Approximately 600 m south of the site's south-eastern corner, this road's alignment is set to curve in a western direction until it eventually intersects with Baviaanspoort Road (M15) and the new north-south K139 road. At this planned new intersection, the intention is to construct a whole new southern leg which will also intersect with Stormvoël Road (M8) further to the south. This southern approach forms part of the planned alignment of the K139 road.

Include the position of the access road on the site plan (if the access road is to traverse a sensitive feature the impact thereof must be included in the assessment).

Alternative 1		
Does ready access to the site exist, or is access directly from an existing road?	YES	NO
If NO, what is the distance over which a new access road will be built		+-49m
Describe the type of access road planned:		

Ha/m²

NO

+-25m

YES

As shown in Drawing No. 0637/CL/02b of the (TIA (Appendix F4), it has been proposed to implement a traffic circle with an outside diameter of approximately 30 m as the intersection's control. The capacity analyses, as provided in Section 5.3 and 5.4 of the TIA report, indicates that both site entrance options (option 1 described above) would have sufficient capacity to accommodate the design traffic. The final intersection control to be implemented, i.e, a butterfly intersection or traffic circle, would then be subject to the authorities' preferred option.

Two inbound lanes and two outbound lanes are recommended for the access. Important to note is that the access will be security controlled and therefore adequate stacking distance should be provided to ensure that inbound vehicles queuing at the security gate do not impact on the through traffic along the Intaba Street.

For this purpose, THM 16 Vol 2 (Committee Draft 2.0, October 2019), was used to determine the required stacking distance for this site access. The following assumptions were made:

Total development trip generations for weekday PM peak entering the development are 433vph;

Service flow rate of 450 veh/hr was assumed for 'Swipe magnetic card'; it is expected that this system will be used or something very similar, such as a biometric system; and

Peak hour factor (PHF) = 0.85.

The traffic ratio percentage calculated to be about 113% (for the 90th percentile queue), which then according to Table 33 of the THM 16 (Vol 2) a theoretical storage length of three (3) vehicles (approximately 20 m) is required for a double entry channel. It is recommended, however, that a minimum stacking distance of 25 m be provided which would allow for about four (4) light passenger vehicles to queue comfortably without stacking onto Intaba Street. Given the extent of the development (952 units) this recommended stacking distance is considered appropriate. In order to accommodate emergency and service vehicles, it is also necessary to ensure that at least one traffic lane (inbound or outbound) has a width of at least 3.5m wide with a total free-space of 4.5m and a height clearance of 5.2m, or as per the requirements of the local authority.

Include the position of the access road on the site plan. (if the access road is to traverse a sensitive feature the impact thereof must be included in the assessment).

Alternative 2

Describe the type of access road planned:

N/A

Include the position of the access road on the site plan. (if the access road is to traverse a sensitive feature the impact thereof must be included in the assessment).

PLEASE NOTE: Points 6 to 8 of Section A must be duplicated where relevant for alternatives

Section A 6-8 has been duplicated

(only complete when applicable)

Number of time

1. LAYOUT OR ROUTE PLAN

A detailed site or route (for linear activities) plan(s) must be prepared for each alternative site or alternative activity. It must be attached to this document. The site or route plans must indicate the following:

the layout plan is printed in colour and is overlaid with a sensitivity map (if applicable);

1

- layout plan is of acceptable paper size and scale, e.g.
 - A4 size for activities with development footprint of 10sqm to 5 hectares;
 - A3 size for activities with development footprint of > 5 hectares to 20 hectares;
 - A2 size for activities with development footprint of >20 hectares to 50 hectares);
 - A1 size for activities with development footprint of >50 hectares);

> The following should serve as a guide for scale issues on the layout plan:

- A0 = 1: 500
- A1 = 1: 1000
- A2 = 1: 2000
- A3 = 1: 4000
- A4 = 1: 8000 (±10 000)
- shapefiles of the activity must be included in the electronic submission on the CD's;
- > the property boundaries and Surveyor General numbers of all the properties within 50m of the site;
- > the exact position of each element of the activity as well as any other structures on the site;

NO

m

- the position of services, including electricity supply cables (indicate above or underground), water supply pipelines, boreholes, sewage pipelines, septic tanks, storm water infrastructure;
- servitudes indicating the purpose of the servitude;
- sensitive environmental elements on and within 100m of the site or sites (including the relevant buffers as prescribed by the competent authority) including (but not limited thereto):
- Rivers and wetlands;
 - the 1:100 and 1:50 year flood line;
 - ridges;
- cultural and historical features;
- o areas with indigenous vegetation (even if it is degraded or infested with alien species);
- Where a watercourse is located on the site at least one cross section of the water course must be included (to allow the position of the relevant buffer from the bank to be clearly indicated)

FOR LOCALITY MAP (NOTE THIS IS ALSO INCLUDED IN THE APPLICATION FORM REQUIREMENTS)

- the scale of locality map must be at least 1:50 000. For linear activities of more than 25 kilometres, a smaller scale e.g. 1:250 000 can be used. The scale must be indicated on the map;
- the locality map and all other maps must be in colour;
- Iocality map must show property boundaries and numbers within 100m of the site, and for poultry and/or piggery, locality map must show properties within 500m and prevailing or predominant wind direction;
- for gentle slopes the 1m contour intervals must be indicated on the map and whenever the slope of the site exceeds 1:10, the 500mm contours must be indicated on the map;
- areas with indigenous vegetation (even if it is degraded or infested with alien species);
- locality map must show exact position of development site or sites;
- Iocality map showing and identifying (if possible) public and access roads; and
- the current land use as well as the land use zoning of each of the properties adjoining the site or sites.

Please refer to Appendix A for the site layout plan and locality map for the proposed residential development. Error! Reference source not f ound. below provides geographic context to the location of the proposed residential development.

2. SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

Colour photographs from the center of the site must be taken in at least the eight major compass directions with a description of each photograph. Photographs must be attached under the appropriate Appendix. It should be supplemented with additional photographs of relevant features on the site, where applicable.

Please refer to Appendix B for the Site indicative photographs for the proposed residential development site.

3. FACILITY ILLUSTRATION

A detailed illustration of the activity must be provided at a scale of 1:200 for activities that include structures. The illustrations must be to scale and must represent a realistic image of the planned activity. The illustration must give a representative view of the activity to be attached in the appropriate Appendix.

Please refer to Appendix C for the Facility illustrations for the proposed residential development and all auxiliary infrastructure.







SECTION B: DESCRIPTION OF RECEIVING ENVIRONMENT

Note: Complete Section B for the proposal and alternative(s) (if necessary)

Instructions for completion of Section B for linear activities

- 1) For linear activities (pipelines etc) it may be necessary to complete Section B for each section of the site that has a significantly different environment.
- 2) Indicate on a plan(s) the different environments identified
- 3) Complete Section B for each of the above areas identified
- 4) Attach to this form in a chronological order
- 5) Each copy of Section B must clearly indicate the corresponding sections of the route at the top of the next page.

Section B has been duplicated for sections of the route 1 time

Instructions for completion of Section B for location/route alternatives

- 1) For each location/route alternative identified the entire Section B needs to be completed
- 2) Each alterative location/route needs to be clearly indicated at the top of the next page
- 3) Attach the above documents in a chronological order

Section B has been duplicated for location/route alternatives

(complete only when appropriate)

Instructions for completion of Section B when both location/route alternatives and linear activities are applicable for the application

Section B is to be completed and attachments order in the following way

- All significantly different environments identified for Alternative 1 is to be completed and attached in a chronological order; then
- All significantly different environments identified for Alternative 2 is to be completed and attached chronological order, etc.

Section B - Section of Route

Section B – Location/route Alternative No.

(complete only when appropriate for above) (complete only when appropriate for above)

time

1

1. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

 Property description: (Including Physical Address and Farm name, portion etc.)

 Portion 426 and
 Portion 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR,

2. ACTIVITY POSITION

Indicate the position of the activity using the latitude and longitude of the centre point of the site for each alternative site. The coordinates should be in decimal degrees. The degrees should have at least six decimals to ensure adequate accuracy. The projection that must be used in all cases is the WGS84 spheroid in a national or local projection.

Alternative:		Latitude (S):		Longitude (E):		
			-25.687812°		28.295599°	
In the Alte	case of linear activities: rnative:	Latitude (S):		Longitude (E):		
•	Starting point of the activity		0		0	
•	Middle point of the activity		0		0	
•	End point of the activity		0		0	

For route alternatives that are longer than 500m, please provide co-ordinates taken every 250 meters along the route and attached in the appropriate Appendix

Addendum of route alternatives attached

Page | 33

The 21 digit Surveyor General code of each cadastral land parcel

U	_																				
HOUSING	Т	0	J	R	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	2	6	0	0	4	2	6
DEVELOPMENT	Т	0	J	R	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	2	6	0	0	6	7	9

3. GRADIENT OF THE SITE

Indicate the general gradient of the site.

Flat	1:50 – 1:20	1:20 – 1:15	1:15 – 1:10	1:10 – 1:7,5	1:7,5 – 1:5	Steeper than 1:5

4. LOCATION IN LANDSCAPE

Indicate the landform(s) that best describes the site.

5. GROUNDWATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGICAL STABILITY OF THE SITE

a)	Is the site	located	on	anv	of	the	follov	vina?
ω,		looutou		u ,	<u> </u>		101101	· · · · · · · ·

Shallow water table (less than 1.5m deep)	YES	NO
Dolomite, sinkhole or doline areas	YES	NO
Seasonally wet soils (often close to water bodies)	YES	NO
Unstable rocky slopes or steep slopes with loose soil	YES	NO
Dispersive soils (soils that dissolve in water)	YES	NO
Soils with high clay content (clay fraction more than 40%)	YES	NO
Any other unstable soil or geological feature	YES	NO
An area sensitive to erosion	YES	NO

(Information in respect of the above will often be available at the planning sections of local authorities. Where it exists, the 1:50 000 scale Regional Geotechnical Maps prepared by Geological Survey may also be used).

b) are any caves located on the site(s)		YES I	NO
If yes to above provide location details in te	rms of latitude and longitude and i	ndicate location on site or route map(s)	
Latitude (S):	Longitue	le (E):	
	0		0
c) are any caves located within a 300m rad	us of the site(s)	YES 1	NO
If yes to above provide location details in te	rms of latitude and longitude and i	ndicate location on site or route map(s)	
Latitude (S):	Longitud	е (Е):	
Latitude (S):	Longituc °	e (E):	0
d) are any sinkholes located within a 300m	Congitue Co	e (E):	•
Latitude (S): d) are any sinkholes located within a 300m	Congitue Co	e (E):	° NO
Latitude (S): d) are any sinkholes located within a 300m If yes to above provide location details in term	radius of the site(s) rms of latitude and longitude and i	e (E):	• NO
Latitude (S): d) are any sinkholes located within a 300m If yes to above provide location details in ter Latitude (S):	radius of the site(s) rms of latitude and longitude and i Longitude	e (E): YES I indicate location on site or route map(s) e (E):	° NO

If any of the answers to the above are "YES" or "unsure", specialist input may be requested by the Department

6. AGRICULTURE

Does the site have high potential agriculture as contemplated in the Gauteng Agricultural Potential Atlas (GAPA 4)?

NO

YES

According to the DEA Screening Tool (As included in Appendix H3 of this BAR), the overall Agricultural sensitivity of the proposed residential development site has been classified as having a High Sensitivity. However, no specialist study has been conducted for agricultural sensitivity as the Gauteng Agricultural Potential Atlas (GAPA_gehh94) has indicated that the agricultural value of the proposed development has been rated as Low, as seen in Figure 11.



Please note: The Department may request specialist input/studies in respect of the above.

7. GROUNDCOVER

To be noted that the location of all identified rare or endangered species or other elements should be accurately indicated on the site plan(s).

indicate the types of groundco	wei present on the site an	u include the estimated perce	nage lound on site	
Natural veld – good	Natural veld with	Natural veld with heavy	Veld dominated by	Landscaped
condition	scattered aliens	alien infestation	alien species	(vegetation)
% =	% =	% =	% =100	% =
Sport field % =	Cultivated land % =	Paved surface (hard landscaping) % =	Building or other structure % =	Bare soil % =

Indicate the types of groundcover present on the site and include the estimated percentage found on site

Please note: The Department may request specialist input/studies depending on the nature of the groundcover and potential impact(s) of the proposed activity/ies.

Are there any rare or endangered flora or fauna species (including red list species) present on the	YES
site	

YES NO

If YES, specify and explain:

Are there any rare or endangered flora or fauna species (including red list species) present within a 200m (if within urban area as defined in the Regulations) or within 600m (if outside the urban area as defined in the Regulations) radius of the site.

YES	NO

If YES, specify and explain:

Although no endangered flora and fauna species were found on the project site, the Moretele NFEPA river is located withing 120 m to the west which must be considered as sensitive (Error! Reference source not found.2)

Furthermore, there are two plant species of concern, *Amaryllidaceae Boophone disticha (L.f.)* and *Hyacinthaceae Drimia altissima (L.f.)*, located across the street, according to The Botanical Database of Southern Africa (BODATSA) and Plants of Southern Africa (POSA)

Are there any special or sensitive habitats or other natural features present on the site?	YES	NO
If YES, specify and explain:		

Ecological Impact Statement Report

Was a specialist consulted to assist with completing this section							NO		
If yes complete specialist details									
Name of the specialist:		Jacolette Adam							
Qualification(s) of the specialist	t:	MSc, LLM (Pr. Sci. Na	t)						
Postal address:		P.O. Box 11634, Eras	muskloof						
Postal code:		0048							
Telephone:	082 85	2 6417		Cell:	082 85	2 852 6417			
E-mail:	jacolet	te@exigent.co.za		Fax:	086 61	4 7327			
Are any further specialist studie	es recom	nmended by the special	st?			YES	NO		
If YES, specify:									
If YES, is such a report(s) attached?						YES	NO		
If YES list the specialist reports	attache	d below							
E-mail: Are any further specialist studie If YES, specify: If YES, is such a report(s) attac If YES list the specialist reports	jacolett es recom ched? attache	e@exigent.co.za nmended by the speciali d below	st?	Fax:	086 61	4 7327 ¥ES ¥ES	NO		

Signature of specialist:

Adam

Date: 22

22 May 2023
Geotechnical Investigation Re	eport				_		
Was a specialist consulted to assist with completing this section						YES	NO
If yes complete specialist details							
Name of the specialist:		Johan Lourens					
Qualification(s) of the specialis	BSc Eng (Civil), PhD (Pr Eng	g)					
Postal address:	Γ	197 Orion Avenue, Waterklo	of Ridge, P	retoria,			
Postal code:	ſ	0181					
Telephone:	082 652	2 9531		Cell:	082 652	9531	
E-mail:	veronl@)) mweb.co.za		Fax:	086 684	0931	
Are any further specialist studi	ies recom	mended by the specialist?		L		YES	NO
If YES, specify:		· ·			•		
If YES, is such a report(s) atta	ched?					YES	NO
If YES list the specialist report	s attache	d below			L		
Signature of specialist:			Date:	12 Decembe	er 2022		
	₿G.	wers					
			-				
Geotechnical Surficial Soils In	nvestigat	ion Report			_		
Was a specialist consulted to a	assist with	n completing this section				YES	NO
If yes complete specialist deta	ils						
Name of the specialist:		David Buttrick					
Qualification(s) of the specialis	st:	Ph.D (Eng Geol)					
Postal address:	ſ	2 Mulberry Hill Office Prak, E	Broadacres	Drive Dainfern			
Postal code:	-	2191					
Telephone:	011 469	9 0854		Cell:	083 300	7013	
E-mail:	intrac@)mweb.co.za		Fax:			
Are any further specialist studi	ies recom	mended by the specialist?		- 1		YES	NO
If YES, specify:					1	-	-
If YES, is such a report(s) atta	ched?					YES	NO
If YES list the specialist report	s attache	d below			L		
· ·							
Signature of specialist:	What	wh	Date:	8 August 20	23		
	11. 5.		-				
Heritage Impact Assessment							
Was a specialist consulted to a	assist with	o completing this section				YES	
If ves complete specialist deta	ile						
Name of the specialist	115	laco van der Walt					
Qualification (a) of the appoint			Arabaaalaa	N1 /			
Qualification(s) of the specials	51.	BA HORS AICHAEOlogy, IVIA		jy			
Postal address:		Private Bag X 1049, Suite	34, Modimo	le			
	<u> </u>	0510			<u>a – (a)</u>		
Telephone:	+27 (0) 8	82 3738491		Cell:	+27 (0)	82 3738491	
E-mail:	jaco@he	eritageconsultants.co.za		Fax:	086 691	6461	
Are any further specialist studi	ies recom	mended by the specialist?					NO
If YES, specify:							
If YES, is such a report(s) atta	ched?					YES	NO
If YES list the specialist report	s attache	d below			L		
· · ·							
Signature of specialist:	A declar	ation has been included in	Date:		26 Jani	uary 2022	
• r	the spec	cialist report (Appendix F)					

Please note; If more than one specialist was consulted to assist with the filling in of this section then this table must be appropriately duplicated

8. LAND USE CHARACTER OF SURROUNDING AREA

Using the associated number of the relevant current land use or prominent feature from the table below, fill in the position of these land-uses in the vacant blocks below which represent a 500m radius around the site

1. Vacant land	2. River, stream, wetland	3. Nature conservation area	4. Public open space	5. Koppie or ridge
6. Dam or reservoir	7. Agriculture	8. Low density residential	9. Medium to high density residential	10. Informal residential
11. Old age home	12. Retail	13. Offices	14. Commercial & warehousing	15. Light industrial
16. Heavy industrial ^{AN}	17. Hospitality facility	18. Church	19. Education facilities	20. Sport facilities
21. Golf course/polo fields	22. Airport ^N	23. Train station or shunting yard ^N	24. Railway line ⁿ	25. Major road (4 lanes or more) ^ℕ
26. Sewage treatment plant ^A	27. Landfill or waste treatment site ^A	28. Historical building	29. Graveyard	30. Archeological site
31. Open cast mine	32. Underground mine	33.Spoil heap or slimes dam ^A	34. Small Holdings	*35. Parking area
Other land uses (describe)*:	Parking area (Zambez	i Retail Park and Tshwane	Shopping Mall)	

NOTE: Each block represents an area of 250m X 250m, if your proposed residential development is larger than this please use the appropriate number and orientation of hashed blocks

	1,2,7	1,2,6	8,9	8,9,12,35	1,12,35]
	1,2	1,2,6,7	9,12,18,35	14,15	14,15,19	
WEST	2	2,4,7		8,13,15	8,14, 15	EAST
	1	1,2,7	14,15	8,14,15	1,8,	
	1	1,2,19	1,2	1,2	13,14	
	L	1	SOUTH	1	1	1

NORTH

= Site

Note: More than one (1) Land-use may be indicated in a block

Please note: The Department may request specialist input/studies depending on the nature of the land use character of the area and potential impact(s) of the proposed activity/ies. Specialist reports that look at health & air quality and noise impacts may be required for any feature above and in particular those features marked with an "^A" and with an "^N" respectively.

Have specialist reports been attached		NO			
If yes indicate the type of reports below					
Geotechnical Report					
Provisional Geotechnical Surficial Soils Investigation					
Ecological and Wetland Riparian Assessment Report					
Heritage Impact Assessment					

Please see a summary of the specialist reports which have been attached below. Kindly note that a summary of the Heritage impact assessment has been included in subsection 10 below.

Laubscher Engineers Africa conducted a Geotechnical Investigation in 2008 to determine the engineering-geotechnical characteristics of the site. An additional Geotechnical Surficial Soils Investigation was conducted in 2023 by IntraSolutions to provide updated data for the project. Both specialist reports have been consulted for the purposes of this report.

Geotechnical Investigation Report (2008)

The investigation was carried out by means of seven 760 mm diameter auger holes, drilled with a Williams LLDH 120 of Gauteng Piling (Pty) Ltd.

The indications from the investigation were that the proposed residential development site is underlain by a deeply weathered diabase sheet, which is covered by transported materials which range in thickness from approximately 2,0 m in the north of the site to approximately 16 m in the south of the site. The top layers of soil, to an average depth of some 1,5 m have a collapsible grain structure, with a collapse potential of about 2,7%. These soils generally have a low activity, with the exception of the material in hole no.7, which tested as medium active in the layer from 2,5 m to 5,5 m depth.

The residual diabase is deeply weathered, generally to a very dense or very stiff clayey silt or sandy clay. Very soft rock diabase was encountered at an average depth of 15,6 m below the natural ground surface. Residual highly weathered quartzite and mudrock were found in borehole A1 at a depth of about 12 m.

The laboratory test results showed the residual diabase to be generally medium to highly active. Only one example of slicken siding was, however, found in a sample brought to the surface. No slicken siding were observed in the borehole sides. The paucity of evidence of movement in the profile can be ascribed to the relatively thick cover of transported soil, which would inhibit moisture changes in the residual diabase. The in situ moisture content of the active layers was found to be relatively high, varying from 17,6% to 28,3%.

The groundwater table was found at an average depth of 12,7 m in five of the seven boreholes. No water was encountered in boreholes A2 and A3.

The maximum heave (on the present ground surface) of the residual diabase profile is estimated by means of Van der Merwe's method (Van der Merwe, 1964), to be about 50 mm. It should, however, be noted that the moisture content of the active layers are relatively high (23,3% on average). Building activities normally *increase* in moisture content in the soil below the buildings. An increase in moisture in the soil (which is already close to saturation) will therefore result in heave substantially less than the maximum possible heave. The largest movement in the soil below the buildings is thus likely to be induced by drying out of the soil. It is estimated that the maximum movement of the profile will be of the order of 20 mm to 25 mm.

Geotechnical Surficial Soils Investigation (2023)

The report presents and comments on the results and observations of the surficial soils investigations and the NHBRC site classification for single storey masonry buildings carried out on the site proposed for development as Derdepoort Portions 426 and 679. The report documents the terms of reference, available data used in the study, investigation procedures, geology, geohydrology, soil testing and recommendations, and references the Loubscher Engineers Africa report W733/vgl, dated 04th November 2008.

Where access was possible, test pits were opened across the site using a 20Ton excavator. Each test pit was entered and inspected by an engineering geologist who also described the soil profiles using the visual and tactile procedures advocated by Jennings et al (1973). Detailed descriptions of the test pit profiles from this investigation are given in Appendix 1 of that report.

For accurate classification and identification purposes, particle size distributions and Atterberg Limit tests have been carried out on samples recovered from the various soil unit horizons uncovered during these investigations. Selected soil unit samples are currently being tested for soil chemistry, collapse, shear box and CBR tests were also undertaken.

The current investigations show that the site is underlain with relatively thick layers of colluvium and transported materials overlaying diabase. The study area is mantled in many places by unconsolidated material deemed to be recent deposits (most likely 24 Ma [Miocene epoch] and younger). The material varies in thickness, sedimentological- and geotechnical properties.

In general it is not anticipated that slope stability will present a general hazard for structures placed on this area. However, where seepage groundwater 'daylights', particularly during very wet periods, particularly in cuttings, subsurface and surface drainage measures may be required.

The fine nature of many, if not most of the soil units encountered during investigations is such that after removal of natural cover, they present a potential erosion problem during periods of heavy rain and also dust removal by high winds of the dry season. Proper storm water management systems with erosion control measures will be required.

Groundwater seepage was not encountered in any of the excavated test pits. However, seepage was reported in the auger holes done between 11.1m to 14.8m within the residual diabase. Seasonal variations in the perched groundwater conditions should be anticipated.

A complete storm water design plan that provides drainage for the convenience of the community as well as the provision of drainage to control runoff from major stormwater events and seepage will need to be maintained on this site. It is generally accepted good practice to avoid any accumulation of surface waters near to the buildings by appropriate surface drainage design. This should also include the (minimum) 150mm freeboard, i.e. top of floor slab to top of ground level and proper attention to 'damp course' provisions, as required in the NHBRC Guidelines.

Where appropriate, the recommendations brought forth by this specialist have been incorporated as part of the mitigation measures contained in Section E below.

Ecological and Wetland Riparian Assessment Report

The Ecological and Wetland Riparian Assessment was conducted by Exigent (2023). The following summarises the findings of the assessment.

Vegetation

As per the desktop assessment conducted for the proposed residential development, it was indicated that the proposed residential development lies within the Rand Highveld Grassland vegetation type of the Mesic Highveld Grassland Bioregion and the Grassland Biome along with the Marikana Thornveld vegetation type of the Central Bushveld Bioregion and the Savanna Biome, NEMBA listed Ecosystem Type. The proposed residential development is not located within Critical Biodiversity (CBA) and Ecological Support Areas (ESA) as identified by the Gauteng Conservation plan (C-plan) V3.3. There are areas identified in the study area as part of the National Protected Areas Expansion Strategy (NPEAS, 2018).

Due to the high levels of disturbance in the surrounding area, the likelihood of the study area presenting a CBA, ESA or PA priority focus area and a vulnerable ecosystem is low. The likelihood of encountering small animals was also low within the study area.

Based on the findings of the site visits conducted for the proposed development, the site has two predominant vegetation communities:

- The Aristida transvaalensis Cymbopogon validus grassland
- The Aristida transvaalensis Cymbopogon validus grassland with exotic woodland

> The Aristida transvaalensis - Cymbopogon validus grassland

The Aristida transvaalensis - Cymbopogon validus grassland vegetation community is located along the Northern boundary of the proposed development site. The anthropogenic activities impacted upon the vegetation community includes main roads bordering the site, the dilapidated remnants of previous infrastructure located on site, dumping areas, footpaths, localised areas of clearance and alien invasive species encroachment in the soccer field area. An active construction site is situated on the northern edge of the proposed project area against the R513. The eastern edge consists of a small unnamed tar road and the western edge of the proposed project area runs along the M15. Currently, the proposed development area is vacant, and a few isolated tents used as informal shelters are present on site as the site is not fenced and is accessible via Wonderboom Street. The extent of this vegetation community is approximately 2.95 ha. The vegetation is containing numerous species, including but not limited to key grass species located on site *include Digitaria eriantha, Aristida transvaalensis* and *Hyparrhenia anamesa*.

This vegetation community has a sensitivity classified as low.

> The Aristida transvaalensis - Cymbopogon validus grassland with exotic woodland

This vegetation community has numerous impacts exercised upon it which include footpaths and localized clearance of vegetation. The extent of this vegetation community is approximately 2.55 ha. The *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland with trees vegetation is dominated by grasses, trees and alien invasive plant species. The observed various vegetation species within the study area includes: *Hyperrhenia hirta, Searsia lancea, Bidens pilosa, Cynodon dactylon, Datura stramonium, Pennisetum clandestinum, Melia azedarach, Morus (Mullberries), Imperata cylindrical, Aristida congesta, Hyphaene petersiana and Verbena bonariensis.*

Due to location of the project and the number of impacts exercised upon it, this vegetation type consist of a low sensitivity. A search and rescue mission must be undertaken in order to confirm the absence of *Hypoxis hemerocallidea* within the development footprint. If identified, adaptive measures would however be required in order to ensure the effective removal and relocation of these individuals within the grassland community.

Faunal Assessment

During the site visit, no common bird species, small mammals, amphibians or reptiles were observed whilst walking the study area. The proposed study area does not possess any avian or amphibian habitats, hence clearing will not negatively affect these fauna species.

As per the DEA screening tool, the following species listed below were expected to occur within the extents of the study area, however, based on the level of disturbance and the habitat type identified on site and the proximity to the proposed residential development, the following probabilities were assigned per species:

- Kinixys lobatsiana (VU): Low probability Savanna bushveld and thornveld habitats
- Neamblysomus julianae (NT): Medium probability Bushveld regions
- Crocidura maguassiensis (LC) Medium probability Rocky habitats
- Dasymys robertsii (VU): Low probability Marshes and wetland habitats
- Clonia uvarovi (VU): Medium probability Woodland Savannah

None of the species of conservation concern were identified on site during the site visits conducted for the proposed residential development.

Overall Terrestrial Ecology Assessment

Based on the findings of the original desktop assessment conducted for the proposed residential development, the site is located in:

- The NEMBA listed Endangered Ecosystem: Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types No vegetation remnant to the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types of vegetation types is present on site.
- No part within a CBA and ESA
- The site contains areas with scattered trees which has the potential of containing 2 species of concern (animals) as
 identified by the DEA Screening tool Of the 5 species, 2 has a potential of occurring within the study area, based on
 the habitat analysis, the *Aristida transvaalensis Cymbopogon validus* grassland with trees habitat has been allocated
 a low to medium sensitivity, whereas the *Aristida transvaalensis Cymbopogon validus* grassland areas habitat type
 has been allocated a low habitat sensitivity.

The concluding findings of the Ecological Impact Statement indicated that the Aristida transvaalensis – Cymbopogon validus grassland vegetation community was determined to have a low sensitivity and the Aristida transvaalensis – Cymbopogon validus grassland with the trees vegetation community was determined to have a low-medium sensitivity due to the sensitive species that has a probability of occurrence. Various mitigation measures have been proposed in order to ensure these species are relocated prior to the commencement of construction activities.

Riparian area

The riparian area associated with the Moretele River watercourse were identified and can be described as riverine areas. The riparian zone associated with the channel has been classified as largely modified (Class D). Modifications to the riparian zone are due to a change in floral species composition as a result of the encroachment of alien invasive species and the removal of indigenous species for the creation of roads to service both for the resort, pathway and M15. Species identified within this area mostly includes *Arundo donax* (Spanish Reed) with the presence of alien invasive vegetation identified within the riparian zone such as *Eucalyptus globulus* (blue gum) and some woody vegetation.

Riparian	Ecological	Category	Score (%)	Class
ScoresType	of channel			
C Section			42.2	D



9. SOCIO-ECONOMIC CONTEXT

Describe the existing social and economic characteristics of the area and the community condition as baseline information to assess the potential social, economic and community impacts.

City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality Integrated Development Plan (IDP)

The CoT is classified as a Category A municipality by the Municipal Demarcation Board, in terms of Section 4 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998) (CoT IDP 2021–2026). The City was established on 5 December 2000 through the integration of various municipalities and councils that had previously served the greater Pretoria regime and surrounding areas (CoT IDP 2021–2026). The boundary of the City was further amended on 28 May 2008 through a proclamation in the Government Gazette, which incorporated the former Metsweding District Municipality, including Nokeng tsa Taemane (Cullinan) and Kungwini (Bronkhorstspruit), into the borders of Tshwane. The incorporation, which gave birth to the new City of Tshwane in May 2011 after the local government elections, was in line with the Gauteng Global City Region Strategy to reduce the number of municipalities in Gauteng by the year 2016 (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

With the incorporation of the above-mentioned areas, the area covers up to 6 345 km² (CoT IDP 2021–2026). The size of Tshwane can be practically explained in that the city stretches almost 121 km from east to west and 108 km from north to south, making it (at that time) the third-largest city in the world in terms of land area, after New York and Tokyo/Yokohama (CoT IDP 2021–2026). It also makes up more than 30% of Gauteng, which is 19 055 km² in extent (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

As the administrative seat of government and host to a number of embassies, Tshwane has proven to be a leader on the African continent in providing affordable industrial sites, various industries, office space, and educational and research facilities (CoT IDP 2021–2026). The City of Tshwane is a catalyst for growth as a major metropolitan and as the capital city (CoT IDP 2021–2026). As the administrative hub of the country it has an established international footprint, as it contains one of the highest number of embassies in the world, an array of research institutions and numerous major industries that offer it a significant competitive advantage over other cities (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

With an estimated 3.56 million population, the CoT Metropolitan Municipality housed 6.0% and 24.2% of South Africa's and Gauteng's total population in 2019 respectively (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Between 2009 and 2019, the population growth rate in the CoT averaged 2.74% per annum, which is close to double the growth rate of South Africa as a whole (1.61%) (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Gauteng's average annual growth rate came in just under at 2.51% over the same period (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

The CoT Metropolitan Municipality's male/female split in population was 98.0 males per 100 females in 2019 (CoT IDP 2021–2026). In 2019, the City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality's population consisted of 78.95% African (2.81 million), 16.89% White (601 000), 2.02% Coloured (71 900) and 2.14% Asian (76 000) people (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

Within CoT Metropolitan Municipality, the number of people without any schooling decreased from 2009 to 2019 with an average annual rate of -1.95%, while the number of people within the 'matric only' category, increased from 586,000 to 876,000 (CoT IDP 2021–2026). The number of people with 'matric and a certificate/diploma' increased with an average annual rate of 3.29%, with the number of people with a 'matric and a Bachelor's' degree increasing with an average annual rate of 5.47% (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Overall improvement in the level of education is visible with an increase in the number of people with 'matric' or higher education (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

A total of 2.47 million individuals in CoT Metropolitan Municipality were considered functionally literate in 2019, while 200 000 people were considered to be illiterate(CoT IDP 2021–2026). Expressed as a rate, this amounts to 92.53% of the population, which is an increase of 0.037 percentage points since 2009 (88.87%). The number of illiterate individuals decreased on average by -1.16% annually from 2009 to 2019, with the number of functional literate people increasing at 3.28% annually (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

The CoT is the fourth biggest municipality in South Africa and second biggest in Gauteng in terms of gross value added by region with gross value add of R497 billion. In 2019, City of Tshwane contributed 28.4 percent to the provincial economy (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Moreover, Tshwane accounted for 9.79 percent of the country's economy (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

The total number of households within City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality increased at an average annual rate of 3.17% from 2008 to 2018 (CoT IDP 2021–2026). With high in-migration into a region, the number of households increased, putting additional strain on household infrastructure (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Sanitation is one of the basic necessities, which contributes to human dignity and quality of life and is an essential pre-requisite for success in the fight against poverty, hunger and child deaths among other pressing socio-economic challenges South Africa faces (CoT IDP 2021–2026). Access to safe water is a fundamental human need and plays an important role in socio-economic development (CoT IDP 2021–2026). When looking at

the water backlog (number of households below RDP-level) overtime, it can be seen that in 2008 the number of households below the RDP-level were 35 300 within City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality, this decreased annually at -8.46% per annum to 14 600 in 2018 (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

Household infrastructure is under strain due to high in-migration into the region. In the short to medium term this can result in an increase in the number of households not living in a formal dwelling, as the provision of household infrastructure usually takes time to deliver (CoT IDP 2021–2026).

10. CULTURAL/HISTORICAL FEATURES

Please be advised that if section 38 of the National Heritage Resources Act 25 of 1999 is applicable to your proposal or alternatives, then you are requested to furnish this Department with written comment from the South African Heritage Resource Agency (SAHRA) – Attach comment in appropriate annexure

- 38. (1) Subject to the provisions of subsections (7), (8) and (9), any person who intends to undertake a development categorised as(a) the construction of a road, wall, powerline, pipeline, canal or other similar form of linear development or barrier exceeding 300m in length;
- (b) the construction of a bridge or similar structure exceeding 50m in length;
- (c) any development or other activity which will change the character of a site-
 - (i) exceeding 5 000 m2 in extent; or
 - (ii) involving three or more existing erven or subdivisions thereof; or
 - (iii) involving three or more erven or divisions thereof which have been consolidated within the past five years; or
 - (iv) the costs of which will exceed a sum set in terms of regulations by SAHRA or a provincial heritage resources authority;
- (d) the re-zoning of a site exceeding 10 000 m2 in extent; or
- (e) any other category of development provided for in regulations by SAHRA or a provincial heritage resources authority, must at the very earliest stages of initiating such a development, notify the responsible heritage resources authority and furnish it with details regarding the location, nature and extent of the proposed development.

Are there any signs of culturally (aesthetic, social, spiritual, environmental) or historically significant elements, as defined in section 2 of the National Heritage Resources Act, 1999, (Act No. 25 of 1999), including archaeological or palaeontological sites, on or close (within 20m) to the site?	¥ES	
If YES, explain:		

If uncertain, the Department may request that specialist input be provided to establish whether there is such a feature(s) present on or close to the site.

Briefly explain the findings of the specialist if one was already appointed:

Due to the requirement for a Heritage Impact Assessment requirement being triggered in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act, a specialist was appointed to conduct a site assessment for the proposed residential development site.

The following key findings concludes the findings of the heritage specialist assessment:

The project area is a highly disturbed property with extremely overgrown vegetation across the entire area. The eastern edge consists of a small unnamed tar road. The western edge of the proposed project area runs along the M15. The project area shows signs of past construction and development that has since been broken down. Multiple modern ruins are scattered across the proposed project area. Illegal dumping takes place within the project area along the major access routes. Currently, the proposed development area is vacant, safe for an informal soccer field and a few isolated tents used as informal shelter.

The project area has been completely altered and disturbed in the recent past and the ephemeral evidence of the Early Iron Age ceramics recorded during the van der Walt (2007) assessment have been destroyed and no trace of these could be found during the assessment undertaken by Pelser (2022) and the current assessment. These were located at S 25°41.199 E 28°17.733 (). From Google imagery between 2007 and 2015 the area was subjected to earthworks and extensive mechanical clearing, with a development to the east of the site being constructed and demolished during this time. These activities would have obliterated any indicators of heritage resources.

NO

The palaeontological sensitivity of the study area is zero/insignificant and no further palaeontological studies are required and no other heritage features were noted. The impact of the project on heritage resources are low and it is recommended that the project can commence on the condition that the recommendations in the HIA are implemented as part of the EMPr and based on approval from SAHRA.

Recommendations for condition of authorisation

The following recommendations for Environmental Authorisation apply and the project may only proceed based on approval from SAHRA:

Recommendations in HIA:

Implementation of the Chance Find Procedure for the project as outlined under Section 10.2 in the assessment report

• Archaeological monitoring of earthworks during the construction phase at the Early Iron Age Location identified in the Van der Walt (2007) report.



Figure 14: Photographic representation of the modern ruins and modern foundations of demolished ruins taken near the eastern edge of the project area.

Will any building or structure older than 60 years be affected in any way? Is it necessary to apply for a permit in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act 25 of 1999)?

YES	NO
YES	NO

If yes, please attached the comments from SAHRA in the appropriate Appendix

SECTION C: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (SECTION 41)

The Environmental Assessment Practitioner must conduct public participation process in accordance with the requirement of the EIA Regulations, 2014.

1. LOCAL AUTHORITY PARTICIPATION

Local authorities are key interested and affected parties in each application and no decision on any application will be made before the relevant local authority is provided with the opportunity to give input. The planning and the environmental sections of the local authority must be informed of the application at least thirty (30) calendar days before the submission of the application to the competent authority.

Was the draft report submitted to the local authority for comment?	YES	NO
If yes, has any comments been received from the local authority?	YES	NO
If "YES", briefly describe the comment below (also attach any correspondence to and from the local author Jannie Gous of City of Tshwane Utility Services Department – Energy and Electricity Division during the Public Participation announcement period and stated that the proposed development infrastructure.	ority to thi 1 provide nt is not	as application): ed a comment affecting their
City of Tshwane Environmental Planning & Open Space Management Section provided comme	ents on t	he Draft Basic

Assessment Report. The contents of the comments indicated that the Department has no objection to the proposed development, however it was recommended that a revised Geotechnical Investigation should be included for the submission of the Final report. This has been completed and a new Geotechnical report has been included as Appendix F4 of this report.

If "NO" briefly explain why no comments have been received or why the report was not submitted if that is the case.

2. CONSULTATION WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

Any stakeholder that has a direct interest in the activity, site or property, such as servitude holders and service providers, should be informed of the application at least **thirty (30) calendar days** before the submission of the application and be provided with the opportunity to comment.

Has any comment been received from stakeholders?

If "YES", briefly describe the feedback below (also attach copies of any correspondence to and from the stakeholders to this application):

YES NO

ESKOM stated that they would not be affected by the development (See Appendix E3). Should comments be received by any organ of state during the public review phase of the draft BAR, these comments will be captured and responded to in the final BAR.

South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) provided comments and noted that the HIA field survey indicated no heritage sites or artefacts of significance were noted or identified, and that no burial grounds and graves where noted or identified due to the vegetative overgrowth. The project area is a fallow area which had multiple structures present until 1995 when all structures were demolished, therefore there are no existing structures in the project area which are older than 60 years. A previously identified Early Iron Age site that contained pottery, stone tools, tuyère pipe fragments and slag was found to be damaged by possible mechanical clearing. While the clearing was comprehensive, some subsurface material may be present. The SAHRA Development Applications Unit (DAU) has no objections to the proposed development but a Monitoring report of the recommended archaeological monitoring by an archaeologist must be submitted to SAHRA once the construction phase is completed. Further additional specific conditions are provided for the development as follows:

- Monitoring report of the recommended archaeological monitoring by an archaeologist must be submitted to SAHRA once the construction phase is completed. If archaeological artefacts are uncovered, work must stop and a permit in terms of section 35(4) of the NHRA must be applied for before further work may continue in that area;
- 38(4)c(i) If any evidence of archaeological sites or remains (e.g. remnants of stone-made structures, indigenous ceramics, bones, stone artefacts, ostrich eggshell fragments, charcoal and ash concentrations), fossils or other categories of heritage resources are found during the proposed development, SAHRA DAU (Annlin Matabane/Natasha Higgitt 021 202 8660) must be alerted as per section 35(3) of the NHRA. Non-compliance with this section of the NHRA is an offence in terms of section 51(1)e of the NHRA and item 5 of the Schedule;
- 38(4)c(ii) If unmarked human burials are uncovered, the SAHRA DAU (Annlin Matabane/Natasha Higgitt 021 202 8660), must be alerted immediately as per section 36(6) of the NHRA. Non-compliance with this section of the NHRA is an offence in terms of section 51(1)e of the NHRA and item 5 of the Schedule;
- 38(4)d See section 51(1) of the NHRA;
- 38(4)e The following conditions apply with regards to the appointment of specialists:
- i) If heritage resources are uncovered during the course of the development, a professional archaeologist or
 palaeontologist, depending on the nature of the finds, must be contracted as soon as possible to inspect the
 heritage resource. If the newly discovered heritage resources prove to be of archaeological or
 palaeontological significance, a Phase 2 rescue operation may be required subject to permits issued by
 SAHRA;
- The Final BAR and EMPR must be submitted to the SAHRIS Case for record purposes;
- The decision regarding the EA Application must be communicated to SAHRA and uploaded to the SAHRIS Case application.

If "NO" briefly explain why no comments have been received

3. GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS

The Environmental Assessment Practitioner must ensure that the public participation process is adequate and must determine whether a public meeting or any other additional measure is appropriate or not based on the particular nature of each case. Special attention should be given to the involvement of local community structures such as Ward Committees and ratepayers associations. Please note that public concerns that emerge at a later stage that should have been addressed may cause the competent authority to withdraw any authorisation it may have issued if it becomes apparent that the public participation process was flawed.

The EAP must record all comments and respond to each comment of the public / interested and affected party before the application report is submitted. The comments and responses must be captured in a Comments and Responses, Report as prescribed in the regulations and be attached to this application.

Please refer to Appendix E for the Comments and Response Report for the proposed residential development. Please note that all public participation conducted, and the reporting thereon, has been done in a manner to take into account the Protection of Personal Information Act (POPIA) (Act 4 of 2013). As such, all personal information (including names and all means of contact) has been retracted for the purpose of the public review period. Please see the Exigent Privacy Policy included in Appendix E which provides an indication as to the distribution restrictions and information use of contact details.

4. APPENDICES FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

All public participation information is to be attached in the appropriate Appendix. The information in this Appendix is to be ordered as detailed below

Appendix 1 – Proof of site notice

- Appendix 2 Written notices issued as required in terms of the regulations
- Appendix 3 Proof of newspaper advertisements
- Appendix 4 –Communications to and from interested and affected parties
- Appendix 5 Minutes of any public and/or stakeholder meetings
- Appendix 6 Comments and Responses Report
- Appendix 7 –Comments from I&APs on Basic Assessment (BA) Report
- Appendix 8 –Comments from I&APs on amendments to the BA Report
- Appendix 9 Copy of the register of I&APs

SECTION D: RESOURCE USE AND PROCESS DETAILS

Note: Section D is to be completed for the proposal and alternative(s) (if necessary)

Instructions for completion of Section D for alternatives

- For each alternative under investigation, where such alternatives will have different resource and process details (e.g. 1)
 - technology alternative), the entire Section D needs to be completed
- 4) Each alterative needs to be clearly indicated in the box below
- 5) Attach the above documents in a chronological order

Section D has been duplicated for alternatives 1 (complete only when appropriate)

Section D Alternative No.

(complete only when appropriate for above)

time

1. WASTE, EFFLUENT, AND EMISSION MANAGEMENT

Solid waste management

Will the activity produce solid construction waste during the construction/initiation phase? If yes, what estimated quantity will be produced per month?

1

YES NO Possibly 20% of the raw materials used on site as per average contingency plans

How will the construction solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

During the construction phase of the proposed residential development, general construction rubble will be produced as part of daily works. This will include brick shards and broken bricks, excess aggregate. All the materials used such as the building rubble and solid construction waste (for example sand, gravel, concrete and waste material) that cannot be used for filling and rehabilitation and other litter and waste generated during the construction phase will be temporarily stored on site, possibly in waste bins/skips, and then removed from site and disposed of safely and responsibly at the nearest appropriate licensed waste disposal site.

Where will the construction solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

The solid waste generated from the construction activities will be removed by a Certified Waste Management Company and be disposed of at a registered landfill site if it cannot be crushed and reused as backfill material

Will the activity produce solid waste during its operational phase? Yes household waste If yes, what estimated quantity will be produced per month?

YES NO Amount cannot be specified at this stage

NO

YES

How will the solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

Household waste must be taken to the closest general waste landfill site for which a service agreement must be obtained.

Has the municipality or relevant service provider confirmed that sufficient air space exists for treating/disposing of the solid waste to be generated by this activity?

Where will the solid waste be disposed if it does not feed into a municipal waste stream (describe)?

It states in the Conditions of Establishment that the township owner shall at his own expense have all litter within the township area removed to the Satisfaction of the City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality, when required to do so by the City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality. The township owner shall provide sufficient refuse collection points in the township and shall make arrangements to the satisfaction of the Municipality for the removal of all refuse.

Note: If the solid waste (construction or operational phases) will not be disposed of in a registered landfill site or be taken up in a municipal waste stream, the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

Can any part of the solid waste be classified as hazardous in terms of the relevant legislation? If yes, inform the competent authority and request a change to an application for scoping and EIA. YES NO

YES NO

Is the activity that is being applied for a solid waste handling or treatment facility? If yes, the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

Describe the measures,	if any,	that will be taken to ensure the optima	al reuse or recycling of materials:
------------------------	---------	---	-------------------------------------

All waste streams generated during construction and operational phase must be managed in accordance with the hierarchy of waste management principles and disposed of at an authorized landfill or waste disposal site must be the last option. Proof of waste disposal certificates must be kept on site and made available to the Department upon request. Waste separation can be encouraged.

request. Waste sepa	ration can be encouraged.		
Liquid effluent (other t	han domestic sewage)		
Will the activity product	e effluent, other than normal sewage, that will be disposed of in a municipal sewage	YES	NO
If yes, what estimated	quantity will be produced per month?		m ³
If yes, has the municip effluent to be generate	ality confirmed that sufficient capacity exist for treating / disposing of the liquid d by this activity(ies)?	YES	NO
Will the activity produc	e any effluent that will be treated and/or disposed of on site?	Yes	NO
If yes, what estimated	quantity will be produced per month?		m ³
If yes describe the nat	ure of the effluent and how it will be disposed.		
Note that if effluent is whether it is necessary	to be treated or disposed on site the applicant should consult with the competent author y to change to an application for scoping and EIA	ority to deter	rmine
Will the activity produc	e effluent that will be treated and/or disposed of at another facility?	YES	NO
If yes, provide the part	iculars of the facility:		
Facility name:	,		
Contact person:			
Postal address:			
Postal code:			
Telephone:	Cell		
E-mail:	Fax:		
Describe the measure	s that will be taken to ensure the optimal reuse or recycling of waste water, if any:		
Liquid effluent (domes Will the activity produc If yes, what estimated If yes, has the municip effluent to be generate	stic sewage) e domestic effluent that will be disposed of in a municipal sewage system? quantity will be produced per month? ality confirmed that sufficient capacity exist for treating / disposing of the domestic d by this activity(ies)?	YES 15 928 YES	NO 9 kl/month NO
Will the activity produc	e any effluent that will be treated and/or disposed of on site?	YES	NO
If yes describe how it	will be treated and disposed off.		
Emissions into the atr	nosphere	VES	NO
will the activity release	ב בהוספווחס ווונט שום מנווטפטוופי צ	+63	NO

If yes, is it controlled by any legislation of any sphere of government? If yes, the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

If no, describe the emissions in terms of type and concentration:

2. WATER USE

Indicate the source(s) of water that will be used for the activity							
municipal	Directly from water board	groundwater	river, stream, dam or lake	other	the activity will not use water		

If water is to be extracted from groundwater, river, stream, dam, lake or any other natural feature, please indicate the volume that will be extracted per month:

N/A

NO

If Yes, please attach proof of assurance of water supply, e.g. yield of borehole, in the appropriate Appendix Does the activity require a water use permit from the Department of Water Affairs?

YES NO

YES

The proposed residential development will require a Water Use Licence in terms of Section 21 (c) and (i) of the National Water Act (Act 36 of 1998), as amended. This will be required as the development of the stormwater and sewer infrastructure will be located within 500 m of a regulatory area of the watercourse and stormwater infrastructure within 32m of a watercourse.

If yes, have you applied for the water use permit(s)?

If yes, have you received approval(s)? (attached in appropriate appendix)

YES NO

3. POWER SUPPLY

Please indicate the source of power supply eg. Municipality / Eskom / Renewable energy source The power supply will be managed by ESKOM (Municipal power supply).

If power supply is not available, where will power be sourced from?

4. ENERGY EFFICIENCY

Describe the design measures, if any, that have been taken to ensure that the activity is energy efficient:

Recommendations will be provided to the developer to make use of :

- Energy efficient sources of Electricity such as the use of Solar Geysers, wrapped geysers, Gas Stoves; Heat Pumps; Street and Security lighting with individual solar panels; LED lightning.
- Energy Efficient ways of construction via insulation, glazing, shutters etc.
- Providing glazing to let the sun in or block it out
- Design living areas with larger windows that allow more light in and reduce the need to use electrical lighting during the day
- Eco-friendly building material that can be recycled/ reused should rather, if possible, be used than building material that cannot be recycled.

Describe how alternative energy sources have been taken into account or been built into the design of the activity, if any: **As described above.**

SECTION E: IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The assessment of impacts must adhere to the minimum requirements in the EIA Regulations, 2014, and should take applicable official guidelines into account. The issues raised by interested and affected parties should also be addressed in the assessment of impacts as well as the impacts of not implementing the activity (Section 24(4)(b)(i).

1. ISSUES RAISED BY INTERESTED AND AFFECTED PARTIES

Summarise the issues raised by interested and affected parties.

One interested and affected party stated that infrastructure such as water capacity in the area needs to be upgraded and that there is a shortage in electricity. He also stated that there is lack of road and stormwater infrastructure.

Summary of response from the practitioner to the issues raised by the interested and affected parties (including the manner in which the public comments are incorporated or why they were not included)

(A full response must be provided in the Comments and Response Report that must be attached to this report):

The I&AP was thanked for their comments and was told that they would be noted. At the time of receiving the comment from the I&AP the final services reports had not been received.

It is important to note that an engineering services report has been compiled for this site, and that the proposed development will be constructed with adequate services and infrastructure as necessary. It is recommended that all service level agreements are in place prior to construction of the proposed development.

2. IMPACTS THAT MAY RESULT FROM THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATIONAL PHASE

Briefly describe the methodology utilised in the rating of significance of impacts

The impacts of the proposed residential development and alternative were assessed according to the criteria in the table below and will include the degree to which these impacts can be reversed, may cause irreplaceable loss of resources and can be avoided, managed or mitigated.

ASPECT	IMPACT RATING
Status of the impact:	
A statement of whether t	he impact is positive (a benefit), negative (a cost), or neutral.
Direct impacts	Impacts that are caused directly by the activity and generally occur at the same time and at the
	place of the activity. These impacts are usually associated with the construction, operation or
	maintenance of an activity and are generally obvious and quantifiable.
Indirect impacts	Impacts of an activity are indirect or induced changes that may occur as a result of the activity.
	These types of impacts include all the potential impacts that do not manifest immediately when
	the activity is undertaken or which occur at a different place as a result of the activity.
Cumulative impacts	Impacts are impacts that result from the incremental impact of the proposed activity on a
	common resource when added to the impacts of other past, present or reasonably foreseeable
	future activities. Cumulative impacts can occur from the collective impacts of individual minor
	actions over a period of time and can include both direct and indirect impacts.

Nature of the impact:

The evaluation of the nature is impact specific. Most negative impacts will remain negative, however, after mitigation, significance should reduce:

- Positive.
- Negative.

Extent:

A description of whether the impact would occur on a scale limited to within the study area (local), limited to within 5 km of the study area (area); on a regional scale i.e. City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality & Gauteng (region); or would occur at a national or international scale.

Local	1
Area	2
Region	3
National	4
International	5

Duration:

A prediction of whether the duration of the impact would be Immediate and once-off (less than one month), more than once, but short term (less than one year), regular, medium term (1 to 5 years), Long term (6 to 15 years), Project life/permanent (> 15 years, with the impact ceasing after the operational life of the development or should be considered as permanent).

Immediate	1
Short term	2
Medium term	3
Long term	4
Project life/permanent	5

Severity (extent +duration + intensity)

Intensity: This provides an order of magnitude of whether or not the intensity (magnitude/size/frequency) of the impact would be negligible, low, medium, high or very high. This is based on the following aspects:

- an assessment of the reversibility of the impact (permanent loss of resources, or impact is reversible after project life);
- whether or not the aspect is controversial;
- an assessment of the irreplaceability of the resource loss caused by the activity (whether the project will destroy the resources which are easily replaceable, or the project will destroy resources which are irreplaceable and cannot be replaced);

Negligible	The impact does not affect physical, biophysical or socio-economic functions and processes.	1					
Low/potential harmful	The impact has limited impacts on physical, biophysical or socio- economic functions and processes.	2					
Medium/slightly harmful	The impact has an effect on physical, biophysical and socio- economic functions and processes, but in such a way that these processes can still continue to function albeit in a modified fashion.	3					
High/Harmful	Where the physical, bio-physical and socio-economic functions and processes are impacted on in such a way as to cause them to temporarily or permanently cease.	4					
Very high/Disastrous	Where the physical, bio-physical and socio-economic functions and processes are highly impacted on in such a way as to cause them to permanently cease.	5					
 the level of alt 	the level of alteration to the natural systems, processes or systems.						

Incidence (frequency + probability)

Frequency: This provides a description of any repetitive, continuous or time-linked characteristics of the impact: Once Off (occurring any time during construction or operation); Intermittent (occurring from time to time, without specific periodicity); Periodic (occurring at more or less regular intervals); Continuous (without interruption).

Once Off	Once	1
Rare	1/5 to 1/10 years	2
Frequent	Once a year	3
Very frequent	Once a month	4
Continuous	≥ Once a day/ per shift	5

Probability of occurrence: A description of the chance that consequences of that selected level of severity could occur during the exposure.

Highly unlikely	The probability of the impact occurring is highly unlikely due to	1
	its design or historic experience.	
Improbable	The probability of the impact occurring is low due to its design	2
	or historic experience.	
Probable	There is a distinct probability of the impact occurring	3
Almost certain	It is most likely that the impact will occur	4
Definite	The impact will occur regardless of any prevention measures	5
Dennite	The impact will occur regardless of any prevention measures	19
rating	The risk rating is calculated based on input from the above ass	essments. The inciden
	occurrence is calculated by adding the Extent of the impact to the	duration of the impact

Severity of th and the inten	Severity of the impact is calculated based on input from the extent of the impact, the duration and the intensity.					
Risk = Sever	Risk = Severity (extent +duration + intensity) x Incidence (frequency + probability)					
Significance qualitatively a	Significance : The significance of the risk based on the identified impacts has been expressed qualitatively as follows:					
	• low – the impact is of little im	portance/insignificant, but may/may not require				
	minimal management					
	o medium - the impact is in	nportant, management is required to reduce				
	negative impacts to acceptab	le levels.				
	• high - the impact is of grea	at importance, negative impacts could render				
	development options or the entire project unacceptable if they cann					
	reduced to acceptable levels and/or if they are not balanced by significar					
	positive impacts, management of negative impacts is essential.					
	Low risk	0 – 50				
	Medium risk	51 – 100				
	High risk	101 - 150				
	nightisk					

In terms of the identification of issues and associated impacts for the proposed project, the following should be noted:

- The issues have been identified by the EAP team, the proponent, landowners and Interested and Affected Parties.
- A broad definition of the "environment" is considered, which includes the natural (biotic and abiotic), social, cultural, economic and built environments.
- Certain issues and associated impacts have been identified as potentially occurring, but their occurrence is not definite. However, they need to be identified to inform decision-making and to enable the relevant parties to proactively address them should they occur, or prevent them from occurring.
- Both negative and positive impacts are identified and described.
- The following specialist studies were commissioned:
 - Ecological and Wetland Riparian Assessment;
 - Heritage Impact Assessment;
 - Geotechnical assessment

These studies were undertaken by independent professionals regarded as specialists in their specific disciplines. The requirements for specialist reports stipulated in Appendix 6 of the R326 of 2017 of NEMA have been complied with.

Briefly describe and compare the potential impacts (as appropriate), significance rating of impacts, proposed mitigation and significance rating of impacts after mitigation that are likely to occur as a result of the construction phase for the various alternatives of the proposed residential development. This must include an assessment of the significance of all impacts.

Proposed Assessment	Sensitivity in the screening tool	Sensitivities identified in the Screening Report	EAP's comments on findings of the screening tool
Archaeological and Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment	Very High	.Within 5km of a Grade I Heritage site	A Heritage Impact Assessment was undertaken to provide an indication towards the sensitivity of the area based on the type of development and the surrounding land uses. In terms of the findings of the assessment, no structures or features of archaeological or heritage significance were identified within the study area.
Palaeontology Impact Assessment	High	Features with a High paleontological sensitivity	As part of the Heritage Impact Assessment compiled by Beyond Heritage (2023) one of the key findings included that "The paleontological sensitivity of the study area is zero/insignificant and no further palaeontological studies are required ."
Terrestrial Biodiversity Impact Assessment	Very High	Features informing sensitivity rating: Critically endangered ecosystem	An Ecological Assessment was compiled for the proposed residential development area. The findings indicated that the proposed development is made up of a disturbed grassland vegetation type and alien species which is observed to have been transformed over time through anthropogenic and existing impacts such as local vegetation clearance and historical farming practices. It was also determined that no biodiversity priority areas exist within the boundaries of the project area .
Aquatic Biodiversity Impact Assessment	Very High	Very High sensitivity in terms of screening report.	The DEA screening tool indicated that the sensitivity for wetlands was very high. Upon site verification there were no wetlands or water courses located on site . However as per the DWS regulatory area, the wetlands located within 500 m of the site was delineated for the study area at a desktop level investigated. The hydrological map in the Ecological study Figure 6.1 indicated that the Moretele River occurs outside the site however within the 500 m regulator area.
Plant Species Assessment	Medium	Eight plant species with a medium sensitivity rating were named: • Sensitive species 1252 • Delosperma gautengense • Sensitive species 733, • Sensitive species 430, • Dicliptera magaliesbergensis, • Brachycorythis conica subsp. Transvaalensis • Sensitive species 1248 • Prunus Africana	 None of these species were identified on site during the site visits conducted for the proposed development. Due to the high levels of disturbance in the surrounding area, the likelihood of the study area presenting a CBA, ESA or PA priority focus area and a vulnerable ecosystem is low. Based on the findings of the site visits conducted for the proposed development, the site has two predominant vegetation communities: The Aristida transvaalensis - Cymbopogon validus grassland The Aristida transvaalensis - Cymbopogon validus grassland with exotic woodland
Animal Species Assessment	Medium	Species listed to possibly occur and evaluated in the compliance statement: • Neamblysomus julianae • Crocidura maquassiensis • Dasymys robertsii • Clonia uvarovi	An Ecological Assessment was compiled for the proposed residential development area. None of these species were identified on site during the site visits conducted for the proposed development, neither were any other animal species identified. The likelihood of encountering small animals was also low within the study area.

$radic z_i$ operialist assessments proposed by the DLA or centrify tool for the proposed restachtal development	Table 2. Specialist assess	nents proposed by the DEA	Screening tool for the prop	oosed residential development
---	----------------------------	---------------------------	-----------------------------	-------------------------------

Proposed Assessment	Sensitivity in the screening tool	Sensitivities identified in the Screening Report	EAP's comments on findings of the screening tool
		 Kinixys lobatsiana Hydrictis maculiocollis Sagittarius serpentarius 	

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

Loss of vegetation species

IMPACT The potential loss of the extent and integrity of Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld

Within the project area the vegetation structure is highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland. The current status of the project area does not reflect the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types. The presence of anthropogenic disturbances and historic clearing contributes to the loss of integrity of these vegetation types. Since the extent and integrity of the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld with reference to potential loss is not represented in the project area due to the absence of these vegetation types of this impact will therefore not be assessed.

IMPACT Impact on species composition and structure of vegetation

Within the project area the vegetation structure is described as a highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland. The proposed development site and is calculated to be 7.935 ha which will be require the clearance of vegetation. The site is severely transformed and displays high anthropogenic activities hence clearing the area classified as highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland will not cause a high impact to the existing vegetation. The species composition of the site is not indicative of the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types. Within the site approximately 100 % of the highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland area will be lost to transformation either due to concreting, landscaping and installation of services to accommodate the layout plan. This impact will therefore not be assessed.

IMPACT Impact on ecosystem threat status

The ecosystem threat status is considered endangered and vulnerable and according to the NBA Vegetation layer (NBA, 2018) and as per the TSH Threatened Ecosystems (SANBI, 2006) the study site was considered critical. The footprint area with regard to the entire site is used to determine the loss of habitat. This site does not present a vegetation composition typical to the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types, hence leaving room for the re-evaluation of the threat status. The disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland habitat will experience a loss of 5.5 ha (69%).

E. A.			Incidence				Risk class		
Exter	t Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	mitigation	After		
							mitigation		
1	5	2	1	1	16	LOW	LOW		
	1	1 5	1 5 2	Extent Duration Intensity Prequency 1 5 2 1	Extent Duration Intensity Frequency Frobability 1 5 2 1 1	Extent Duration Intensity Productory Probability Before 1 5 2 1 1 16	Extent Duration Intensity Prequency Probability Before initigation 1 5 2 1 1 16 LOW		

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

• Natural open spaces outside the development footprint should be left in their undeveloped state.

- Any existing or new exotic vegetation within the proposed development site must be eradicated.
- A monitoring program should be put in place to remove exotic vegetation and maintain areas free from exotic invasions during the construction and operational phase.
- Indigenous veg to be used for landscaping purposes

IMPACT Impact on explicit subtypes in the vegetation

As per the databases, the vegetation within the project area is classified as the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types. However upon site inspection the composition of vegetation on the site is dominated by highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland type species and not the associated with the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types. Within the proposed development area, there is no indication of a wetland vegetation type, whereas the remainder of the proposed development area is comprised of highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland with a small area scattered with alien trees which will be impacted upon (5.5 ha) the impact of this subtype is assessed below.

Impact	Туре	Severity	1	Incidence			Risk class		
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	mitigation	After
									muyauon
Negative	Cumulative	1	4	3	1	5	54	MEDIUM	LOW

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

- Natural open spaces outside the development footprint should be left in their undeveloped state.
- Any existing or new exotic vegetation within the proposed development site must be eradicated.
- A monitoring program should be put in place to remove exotic vegetation and maintain areas free from exotic invasions during the construction and operational phase.
- Indigenous veg to be used for landscaping purposes

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE									
Loss of faunal species									
IMPACT Impact on faunal species due to site clearance									
During the ecological site visit, no common bird species, small mammals, amphibians or reptiles were observed whilst walking the study area. The proposed study area does not possess any avian or amphibian habitats, hence clearing will not negatively affect these fauna									
Impact	Туре	Severity	1	Incidence		Risk class			
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before mitigation	After mitigation	
Negative Direct 1 5 2 1 16 LOW									
 COMMENT/MITIGATION: Site clearance must take place from west to east (uphill) to provide any species that may occur the opportunity to migrate towards the east and where development is sparse and towards the north-east where a large undeveloped area occurs. Any encounters with possible animal species must be handled with care and no harm must come to the animal. No pesticides, insecticides or killing of animals may be undertaken 									
IMPACT	Impact on o	verall ec	osystem d	iversity of the site	-				
The exten no charac grassland and asso developm	The extent of loss within the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types is not calculated as the site represents no characteristics of these vegetation type. The partial extent of the highly disturbed <i>Aristida transvaalensis</i> – <i>Cymbopogon validus</i> grassland with some alien trees vegetation type, 5.5 ha will be impacted upon. This is surrounded by developments such as a main roads, and associated infrastructure. The project area is not flagged as a corridor and there are no aquatic features within the proposed development area. the overall ecosystem is assessed below.								
Impact	Туре	Severity	1	Incidence			Risk class		
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before mitigation	After mitigation	
Negative	Negative Direct 1 5 2 1 1 1 16 LOW LOW								
 No areas outside the final footprint may be cleared. Indigenous veg to be used for landscaping purposes Management of construction related impacts such as eating areas, concrete mixing areas, storage yard should only be allowed in designated areas. 									
IMPACT	Impact on a	iny chang	ges to the t	hreat status of ecosys	stems in the (CBA			
The footprint area with regard to the entire site is used to determine the loss of habitat. This site does not present any CBA, ESA or PA's, nor vegetation representative of the Rand Highveld Grassland and Marikana Thornveld vegetation types, hence leaving room for the re- evaluation of the threat status. A loss of 5.5 ha (69 %). of the highly disturbed <i>Aristida transvaalensis</i> – Cymbopogon validus grassland vegetation will occur. The impact of ecosystem diversity is assessed below									
Imapct	Туре	Severity	,	Incidence			Risk class		
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before mitigation	After mitigation	
Negative	Indirect	1	5	2	1	1	16 LOW	LOŴ	
 COMMENT/MITIGATION: Strict management during construction phase to limit the extent of the footprint of the impact. No areas outside the final footprint may be cleared. Indigenous veg to be used for landscaping purposes. Management of construction related impacts such as eating areas, concrete mixing areas, storage yard should only be allowed in designated areas. Heritage Impact 									
IMPACT	Cultural and	d heritage	e aspects						
Potential i Due to the heritage re report sho all phases	IMPACT Cultural and heritage aspects Potential impact Due to the lack of any archaeological finds, there will be no impact to known heritage resources. Any additional effects to subsurface heritage resources can be successfully mitigated by implementing a chance find procedure. Mitigation measures as recommended in this report should be implemented during all phases of the project. Impacts of the project on heritage resources is expected to be low during all phases of the development.								

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

Pre-Construction phase

It is assumed that the pre-construction phase involves the removal of topsoil and vegetation as well as the establishment of infrastructure. These activities can have a negative and irreversible impact on heritage features if any occur. Impacts include destruction or partial destruction of non-renewable heritage resources.

CONSTRUCTION PHASE

IMPACT Infestation of alien invasive species during construction

The disturbance of the highly disturbed *Aristida transvaalensis* – *Cymbopogon validus* grassland by the proposed activities may increase the spread of exotic species. Alien and invasive species are already a problem in the project area and utmost care should be taken not to disperse and increase the colonisation of these species.

Туре	Severit	y		Incidence		Risk c	lass	
	Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	e mitigation	After
			-		-			mitigation
Direct	2	5	3	5	5	100	MEDIUM	MEDIUM
	Type Direct	Type Severity Extent Direct 2	Type Severity Extent Duration Direct 2 5	Type Severity Extent Duration Intensity Direct 2 5 3	Type Severity Incidence Extent Duration Intensity Frequency Direct 2 5 3 5	Type Severity Incidence Extent Duration Intensity Frequency Probability Direct 2 5 3 5 5	Type Severity Incidence Risk c Extent Duration Intensity Frequency Probability Before Direct 2 5 3 5 5 100	Type Severity Incidence Risk class Extent Duration Intensity Frequency Probability Before mitigation Direct 2 5 3 5 5 100 MEDIUM

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

• Any existing or new exotic vegetation within the proposed development site must be eradicated.

- A monitoring program should be put in place to remove exotic vegetation and maintain areas free from exotic invasions during the construction and operational phase.
- Indigenous vegetation to be used for landscaping purposes

IMPACT Hydrological impacts

Although there are no delineated wetlands located within the project area, it is important to make sure no spills take place to prevent the contamination into the groundwater and all surface water run-off must be managed during the construction phase. The developer proposed external services installation and upgrades withing close proximity to the Moretele River. Appropriate planning and management within these areas must be carefully done.

Impact	Туре	Severity			Incidence		Risk class			
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	emitigation	After mitigation	
Negative	Indirect	2	3	3	3	3	48	LOW	LOW	

COMMENT/MITIGATION WITHIN PROPERTY BOUNDARY:

- Silt traps must be installed on the development site boundary during construction;
- Small-scale diversion berms should be constructed, to reduce the risk of the earthworks becoming a preferred surface flow path leading to erosion;
- "Trench-breakers", which are in-trench barriers, should be installed within any trench excavations to intercept and minimise the
 accumulation of surface runoff water from upslope areas running down the trenches;
- Erosion control structures must be put in place where soil may be prone to erosion;
- Bare areas where vegetation has been removed pose a risk of becoming a sediment load during heavy rainfall, this must be managed by placing it on the upslope side of the development site;
- Temporary stormwater management structures must be used during construction. Any areas damaged as a result of stormwater runoff from the construction site must be rehabilitated immediately; and
- During rehabilitation, prompt and progressive reinstatement of bare areas is required. During reinstatement, the topsoil layer is to be replaced last, to simulate the pre-construction soil conditions.

COMMENT/MITIGATION WITHIN MORETELE RIVER AREA:

- The construction footprint must be kept as small as possible.
- Topsoil must be carefully removed and stored for use in rehabilitation of the area after construction has been completed.
- The area must be sectioned off to prevent vehicle encroachment beyond the required work areas.
- As soon as construction of the culvert has been completed the area must be reinstated with topsoil and the vegetation contained therein.

IMDACT	Dollution of	ourfees	and group	PR dwotor due	to observice					
	Pollution of	surrace	anu grouni		to chemical,	on and spi	nages	n al c - l'		
Contamin	ants such as	nydroca	roons, solid	as and pat	nogens will b	be generate	a trom several	potenti	al sources (examples include
petrol/dies	sel, oil/grease a	and other	hazardous	substances). These conta	iminants hav	e the capacity to	negativ	ely affect eco	systems including
sensitive of	or intolerant sp	ecies of f	lora and fau	una.						
Impact	Туре	Severity	1	Incidence				Risk	class	
	_	Extent	Duration	Intensity		Frequency	Probability	Befor	e mitigation	After
				-		-	-			mitigation
Negative	Direct	2	3	5		2	2	40	LOW	LOW
COMMEN	IT/MITIGATIO	N:								
•	Extra care mu	st be take	en to prever	nt any poter	ntially hazardo	ous substanc	es from entering	the gro	oundwater du	ring heavy rainfall
	events by impl	lementing	mitigation	plans, such	as the Stormy	water Manag	gement Plan;			
•	The use and h	nandling o	of all chemic	cals and po	tentially hazar	dous substa	ances must take	olace o	n an imperme	eable surface and
	bunded areas	to prever	nt chemicals	and potent	ially hazardou	is substance	es from infiltrating	the so	il;	
•	All rubble and	other typ	es of waste	must be ap	propriately sto	ored and dis	posed of at a lice	nsed w	aste disposal	site;
•	Contingency p	plans mus	st be compi	led for poss	sible spillages	of dangero	us goods and in	clude d	etails for dec	ontamination and
	process to be	followed:		•	1 0	0	5			
•	Spill kits must	be availa	ble in the ev	vent of a hv	drocarbon or o	chemical spi	II			
IMPACT	Pollution of	the surf	ace water a	and around	water due to	raw sewer	spills			
Due to the	nature of the	proposed	project, the	re is a likelih	nood of sewag	e spillages o	lue to malfunction	of infra	astructure, po	lluting the wetland
svstem du	iring the const	ruction ar	nd operation	al phases.	The health risl	ks associate	d with high <i>E. co</i>	<i>li</i> levels	are of seriou	s concern.
Impact	Туре	Severity	1			Incidence	5 5	Risk	class	
	7 1**	Extent	Duration	Intensity		Frequency	Probability	Befor	e mitigation	After
									•	mitigation
Negative	Direct	2	3	5		2	2	40	LOW	LOW
COMMEN	T/MITIGATIO	N:	•	•			•			•
•	Preventive me	asure mu	ust be unde	rtaken durir	ng the constru	ction of the	infrastructures, s	ecuring	all joints for	minimum spillage
	occurrences.				•			-		
•	Should a spilla	ige occur	, it must be	reported to	the relevant d	epartments	immediately.			
•	Where contam	ination o	ccurs. soil n	nust be imm	ediatelv remo	ved to preve	ent further contan	nination		
•	Records must	be kept c	of sewage si	oillages duri	ng all phases	of the propo	sed residential d	evelopi	ment.	
•	An emergency	nrenared	iness nlan r	nust be in n	lace for instan	ces where s	nills occur that ca	n he ha	rmful to neon	le or the receiving
	environment	propulo								ie ei ale recenting
IMPACT	Potential Io	ss of ring	arian area							
Construct	ion work in the	rinarian	area could l	ead to harm	ful conseguer	nces such as	s loss of vegetativ	n nrol	lome in ro-og	tablishment of
vegetation	after complet	ion of wo	rks		nui consequei		s loss of vegetation	n, proi		
Impact		Severity	1	Incide	nce			Risk	class	
•	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Pr	obability	Befor	e mitigation	After mitigation
Negative	Direct	1	2	2	1	3	···· . ,	20	IOW	LOW
COMMEN		N·	_	_				20		2011
•	No stockniling	of any m	aterials may	v take place	adiacent to th	ne river				
•	Erosion contro	ol measur	es must be	implemente	d in areas ser	nsitive to ero	sion such as edo	es of s	opes, expose	ed soil etc.
•	These measur	res includ	e but are no	ot limited to	- the use of sa	and bags, he	essian sheets. silt	fences	retention or	replacement of
	vegetation and	d geotexti	les such as	soil cells w	hich are used	in the protect	ction of slopes.		,	- F
•	In addition, the	e conditio	n of water th	hat occurs i	n the river is to	o remain clea	ar and no increas	e in tur	bidity is allow	ed as a result of
	increased sed	iment lev	els resulting	j from worki	ng on the ban	ks or bed				
•	Strict manage	ment duri	ng construc	tion phase	to limit the ext	ent of the fo	otprint of the impa	act.		
•	No areas outs	ide the fir	nal footprint	may be clea	ared.					
•	Indigenous ve	a to be us	sed for land	scaping pur	poses.					
•	Management /	of constru	iction relate	d imnacte e	uch as eating	areas conc	rete mixing areas	stored	ne vard shoul	d only he allowed
	in decignated	areas		a impaolo o	aon ao cauny			, stordį	je yaru shour	a only be allowed
	in ucsignated	arcas.								

DDEEEDDED ALTEDNATIN

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

Vegetatio the flow o									
the flow o	on clearance ma	ay result i	n sheet ero	sion. The clearance of v	egetation will	further reduce th	e capac	ity of the land s	surface to retard
	of surface water	r, thus, de	ecreasing in	filtration, and increasing) both the qua	ntity and velocity	of surfa	ce water runof	f and erosion.
Impact	Туре	Severity	1	1	Incidence	1	Risk c	ass	-
l		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	mitigation	After
NL C		0	-		0	<u>^</u>			mitigation
Negative	Direct	2	5	3	3	3	60	MEDIUM	LOW
COMMEN	NT/MITIGATIO	N: Ihaailaha	ساط امم ملمما	knillad concretally, to not	impost on or	an autoida tha a	on vitu dou		
•				kplieu separately, to noi	impact on are		ervitude,		
•	Topsoli storag	e snould	not exceed	a neight of 2 m.				1	
•	During renabil	itation, pr	ompt and p	rogressive reinstatemen	it of bare area	as is required. The	e topson	layer is to be	replaced on top
1	ouring reinstal	ement.		les internals to identifie					
•		be carried	l out at regu	liar intervals to identify a	areas where e	rosion is occurrin	ig;		
•	The control of	soil erosi	on and silta	tion associated with cor	istruction is im	iportant at all loca	ations or	site, and part	icularly adjacent
l	to riparian are	a. Both te	mporary an	d permanent soll erosid	n control mea	sures must be us	sea aurir	ig the construc	tion phase. Any
1	Demodial action	areas, wri	iich may iay	bare for extended pend	Das, snouia de	e temporaniy gras	seu.		
•	Remedial action	on, inclua	ing the rena	abilitation of eroded area	as and, where	necessary, the re	elocation	of the paths of	causing erosion,
1	is to be under	aken							
IMDACT	Secie coop	omio imr	acto oron	tion of ich annortunit					
	r of temporary	employm	ent and skil	ls development opportuille	nities will he r	reated during co	nstructio	n These onn	ortunities will be
of short-to	erm duration a	nd will he	limited to the	ne construction requirer	nents of the C	contractor howev	er skills	can be transfe	erred which may
be used o	during further c	pportunit	ies. Future	employment opportuniti	es may arise	from the resident	ts of the	Derdepoortpa	rk Extension 44
developm	nent emploving	domestic	workers.					Doraopoortpu	
Impact	Туре	Severity	1		Incidence		Risk c	ass	
1		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	mitigation	After
									mitigation
Positive	Direct	3	3	4	5	5	100	MEDIUM	No mitigation
		ve Direct 3 3 4 5 5 100 MEDIUM No mitigation							
COMMEN									
COMMEN	NT/MITIGATIO	N: r should	if possible		uro the econo	mic growth of the		ding area. (Th	required
	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto	N: r should,	if possible,	use local labour to ensi	ure the econo	l mic growth of the	surrour	nding area. (Th	required
	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm	N: r should, med this a	if possible, aim)	use local labour to ensi	ure the econo	mic growth of the	e surrour	nding area. (Th	required
	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm	N: r should, med this a fety impa	if possible, aim) acts on the	use local labour to ensi	ure the econo	mic growth of the	e surrour	nding area. (Th	ne applicant has
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the su	ure the econo	mic growth of the	e surrour	nding area. (Th re of high con	required ne applicant has cern. During the
IMPACT As part of constructi	I NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia <i>i</i> II be crit	if possible, aim) a cts on the al developm ical that the	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion nent, the safety of the sub e safety of the resident	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com	e surrour nesses a promise	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result o	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia rill be crit	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the	use local labour to ensitive surrounding propertion the safety of the succession of the succession of the resident	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com	e surrour nesses a promise	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result o	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed
IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia vill be crit Severity Extent	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion ent, the safety of the su e safety of the resident	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of lass	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed
IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia residentia rill be crit <u>Severity</u> Extent	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion rent, the safety of the sub- e safety of the resident Intensity	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c Before	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result o lass mitigation	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it wa al development Type Direct	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia residentia vill be crit Severity Extent	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the buration	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion ent, the safety of the su e safety of the resident Intensity 3	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c Before 45	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result o lass mitigation LOW	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia vill be crit Severity Extent 1 N:	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion ent, the safety of the su e safety of the resident Intensity 3	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of ass mitigation	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia residentia residentia residentia residentia fety impa residentia fety impa residentia fety impa residentia	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sub- safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security pla	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c Before 45 safety of	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of ass mitigation LOW	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it we al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business,	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia residentia residentia vill be crit Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 : is to provid e constructi	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sub- e safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plate on phase of the proposition	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developme	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the sent.	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of ass mitigation LOW	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it we al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The construction	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia vill be crit Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th on footpri	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 is to provid e construction int must be	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion ent, the safety of the sure a safety of the resident Intensity 3 e a detailed security plat on phase of the propos demarcated and cordor	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developmened off prior to	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the sent. the commencem	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of	nding area. (The of high condition of high condi	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The construction	N: r should, med this a residentia residentia residentia residentia residentia fety impa residentia fety impa fety impa	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 is to provid e construction int must be s are to be p	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sub- safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plate on phase of the propose demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pase	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed development and off prior to st the boundar	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 1 rds ensuring the sent. the commencerries of the demarc	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of nent of the cated coo	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of ass mitigation LOW the adjacent n the construction nstruction foot	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas works. print.
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it we al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The construction	N: r should, med this a residentia residentia residentia residentia residentia fety impa residentia fety impa fety impa	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 is to provid e constructi int must be s are to be p	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertia ent, the safety of the su a safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security pla on phase of the propos demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pas	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 in aimed towa ed developme ied off prior to st the boundar	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the sent. the commencem ies of the demarc	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c Before 45 safety of nent of th cated con	nding area. (The of high condition of high condi	required he applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas h works. print.
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN • • • • • •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it we al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The constructio No construction	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia vill be crit Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th on footprise n workers	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the bical that the Duration 5 is to provid e construction int must be s are to be p e aspects	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion ent, the safety of the sure a safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plat on phase of the propos demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pas	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developme hed off prior to st the boundar	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the sent. the commencem ies of the demarc	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of nent of th cated con	nding area. (Th re of high con d as a result of ass mitigation LOW The adjacent n the construction nstruction foot	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas n works. print.
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN • • • • • • • • • • • • •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The constructio No construction is phase, the in	N: r should, med this a residentia residentia rill be crit Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th on footpri on workers d heritagen	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 is to provid e construction int must be s are to be p e aspects d effects ar	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sur- safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plate on phase of the propose demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pase e similar in nature but n	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developme and off prior to st the boundar	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the ent. the commencem ies of the demarc	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of hent of the cated con	nding area. (The of high condition of high condition of high condition of the adjacent of the adjacent of the adjacent of the adjacent of the construction foot of the phase. Poter of the	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas works. print.
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN • • • • • • • • • • • • •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confin Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it w al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The constructio No construction is phase, the in estruction or pa	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia residentia residentia residentia N: Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th on footprion workers d heritag mpacts an artial dest	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the Duration 5 is to provid e construction int must be s are to be p e aspects d effects ar ruction of no	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sur- a safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plate on phase of the propose demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pase e similar in nature but non-renewable heritage residence	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developme ned off prior to st the boundar more extensive esources.	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the ent. the commencem ies of the demarc	e surrour nesses a promise Before 45 safety of nent of the cated con	nding area. (The of high condition of high condi	required he applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas h works. print.
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN • • • • • • • • • • • • •		N: r should, med this a residentia residentia residentia residentia N: contractor during th on footpri on workers d heritagen npacts an artial dest vities resu	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the balance Duration 5 r is to provid e construction int must be s are to be p e aspects d effects ar ruction of no ulting in disti-	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sur- e safety of the resident Intensity 3 te a detailed security plate on phase of the propose demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pase e similar in nature but non-renewable heritage re- urbance of surfaces and logical material or object	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developme hed off prior to st the boundar more extensive esources. I/or sub-surfacts	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the ent. the commencem ies of the demarce e than the pre-cor ces may destroy,	e surrour nesses a promise Risk c Before 45 safety of nent of th cated con nstructio damage	nding area. (The of high condition of high condition of as a result of the adjacent restruction foot for the adjacent restruction foot for the phase. Poter for a later, or remains a later, or remains the construction foot for the phase. Poter for the phase. Pot	required required re applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas works. print. htial impacts ove from its
COMMEN • IMPACT As part of constructi residentia Impact Negative COMMEN • • • • • • • • • • • • •	NT/MITIGATIO The contracto already confirm Security/Sa f the proposed ion phase, it we al development Type Direct NT/MITIGATIO The principal of and business, The constructio No construction is phase, the im estruction or past tion phase activo osition archaeco	N: r should, med this a fety impa residentia vill be crit Severity Extent 1 N: contractor during th on footpri on workers d heritagen pacts an artial dest vities resu	if possible, aim) acts on the al developm ical that the construction f t is to provid e construction f must be s are to be p e aspects d effects ar ruction of no alting in distu-	use local labour to ensi surrounding propertion tent, the safety of the sur- a safety of the resident Intensity 3 le a detailed security plate on phase of the propose demarcated and cordor permitted to wander pase e similar in nature but no on-renewable heritage re- urbance of surfaces and logical material or object	ure the econo es/estates irrounding pro s of the estat Incidence Frequency 4 an aimed towa ed developmened off prior to st the boundar nore extensive esources. d/or sub-surfactors	mic growth of the perties and busir e not to be com Probability 1 rds ensuring the sent. the commencerries of the demarcerries than the pre-cor ces may destroy,	e surrour nesses a promised Risk c Before 45 safety of nent of th cated con instruction damage	nding area. (The of high condition of high condition of as a result of the adjacent of the construction foot of the phase. Poter of a later, or removed a later of the	required ne applicant has cern. During the of the proposed After mitigation LOW residential areas works. print. htial impacts ove from its

							(5		
				Without Mitigation		Wit Mitigation	n (Prese	rvation/excava	ation of site)
Extent				Local (1)		Local (1)			
Duration	tion Permanent (5)				Permanent (5)				
/lagnitud	ude Minor (2)					Minor (2)			
Probabili	ty			Improbable (2)		Improbable (2)		
Significa	nce			16 (Low)		16 (Low)			
Status (p	ositive or neg	ative)		Negative		Negative			
Reversib	ility			Not reversible		Not reversible			
rreplace	able loss of re	sources	?	Yes		Yes			
Can impa	acts be mitigat	ted?		NA		NA			
he follov	ving table was	compiled	according t	the above extracts:					
mpact	Туре	Severity	l.		Incidence		Risk o	class	
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Befor	e mitigation	After
legative	Direct	1	5	2	1	2	17	LOW	LOW
		-							
EUMULA	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT osed project wil	port. S: Il have a	low cumula	tive impact as no sign	ificant heritage	resources will be	e adverse	ely affected.	
CUMULA The properties of the p	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT: Dised project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations dise tic soils mantle has been ana elow:	port. S: Il have a an be ave CTS - F(cussed in the bedr lysed and	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO the Provis ock over lar t broad prel	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a char NS DESIGNS ional Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov	ificant heritage nee that comple inficial Soils Inve area. The occi ided on the Soi	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4)	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The properties of the p	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACTS: osed project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle has been ana elow: DESIGNATION	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - FO cussed in the bedr lysed and SUB-/ VS SHOV	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO the Provis ock over lar broad prel AREA VN ON THE	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a char NS DESIGNS ional Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov	ificant heritage nce that comple inficial Soils Inve e area. The occi ided on the Soi	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR'	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4)	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The property of the problem a pehavious defined b 2[H1/C-2[H2-H3]	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACTS: based project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca e quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle restigations disc tic soils mantle has been ana elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] J/C-C1/S]	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - F(cussed ir the bedr lysed and SUB-/ NS SHOV	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO I the Provis ock over lar broad prel AREA VN ON THE	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a char NS DESIGNS ional Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP	ificant heritage nce that comple arficial Soils Inve area. The occi ided on the Soi Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR m to 15mm total h collapse settlement n collapse settlement settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1)	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) IENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The property of the pro	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT: osed project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle has been ana elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] J/C-C1/S]	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - Fo cussed ir the bedr lysed and SUB-/ NS SHOV	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO I the Provis ock over lar I broad prel AREA VN ON THE	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a char INS DESIGNS ional Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP	ificant heritage nce that comple inficial Soils Inve e area. The occu ided on the Soil Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm Anticipate 15mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR m to 15mm total h collapse settlement settlement (S). m to >30mm total collapse settlement settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1)	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) ENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The property of the pro	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT: osed project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle r has been ana elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] B/C-C1/S]	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - F(cussed ir the bedr lysed and SUB-/ VS SHOV	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO I the Provis ock over lar broad prel AREA VN ON THE	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a chai inal Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP	ificant heritage ince that comple inficial Soils Inve a area. The occu- ided on the Soi Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm less than 10mm	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR' m to 15mm total h n collapse settlement n settlement (S). m to >30mm total n collapse settlement n settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1)	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) IENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The properties of the p	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations dis- tic soils mantle r has been ana- elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] S/C-C1/S] Sub-areas ry recommenda this site is typic le marker up to	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - Fo cussed in the bedr lysed and SUB-/ SSHOV	ignation 2[provided brownia bided or mit DUNDATIO the Provis ock over lar d broad prel AREA VN ON THE ignation 2[provided b ick layer of if 3m:	tive impact as no sign igated, there is a chain INS DESIGNS ional Geotechnical Su ige sections of the site iminary zonation prove SOIL MAP	ificant heritage nee that comple urficial Soils Inve e area. The occu ided on the Soil Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm Anticipate 15mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm ge precautions on the variable s se colluvium, or	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR' m to 15mm total h collapse settlement n settlement (S). m to >30mm total n collapse settlement n settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1) ditions er dense to	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) IENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and countered. The b dense transpo	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The property of the pro	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT: osed project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle r has been ana elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] S/C-C1/S] S/C-C1/S] Sub-areas ry recommenda this site is typic le marker up to Type	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - Fo cussed in the bedr lysed and SUB-/ NS SHOV	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO I the Provis ock over lar broad prel AREA VN ON THE ignation 2[I provided b lick layer of if 3m:	tive impact as no sign igated, there is a char inal Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP	ificant heritage nee that comple inficial Soils Inve e area. The occu ided on the Soil Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm Anticipate 15mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm ge precautions on the variable s se colluvium, or	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR ¹ m to 15mm total h n collapse settlement n settlement (S). m to >30mm total n collapse settlement n settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1) ditions er dense to Ris	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) ENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and countered. The b dense transpo-	on, but this ptentially ed in-service with the zon
CUMULA The property of the pro	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACTS: osed project will AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca equantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle r has been analelow: DESIGNATION C1/S] S/C-C1/S] S/C-C1/S] Sub-areas ry recommenda this site is typic le marker up to Type	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - Fo cussed in the bedr lysed and SUB-/ NS SHOV with des ations are cal of a th depths of Extent	low cumula Dided or mit DUNDATIO I the Provis ock over lar J broad prel AREA VN ON THE ignation 2[Provided b lick layer of If 3m: y Duration	tive impact as no sign igated, there is a char isonal Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP	ificant heritage ince that comple inficial Soils Inve e area. The occu ided on the Soil Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm Anticipate 15mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm ge precautions on the variable s se colluvium, or Incidence y Frequency	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR m to 15mm total h collapse settlement settlement (S). m to >30mm total collapse settlement settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1) ditions er dense to Ris Bef	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) ENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and accountered. The b dense transpo k class fore mitigation	on, but this ptentially ed in-service with the zon with the zon e subsurface priced materia
CUMULA The property of the pro	Walt (2007) re TIVE IMPACT: osed project wil AL IMPACTS: surface sites ca quantified. HNICAL ASPE restigations disc tic soils mantle r has been ana elow: DESIGNATION C1/S] 3/C-C1/S] Sub-areas ry recommenda this site is typic le marker up to Type Cumulative	port. S: Il have a an be avo CTS - F(cussed in the bedr lysed and SUB-/ VS SHOV with des ations are cal of a th depths o Severit Extent	low cumula bided or mit DUNDATIO the Provis ock over lar broad prel AREA VN ON THE ignation 2[provided b ick layer of if 3m: y Duration 4	tive impact as no sigr igated, there is a char ional Geotechnical Su ge sections of the site iminary zonation prov SOIL MAP H1/C-C1/S] – drainag elow and are based of loose to medium den	ificant heritage ince that comple inficial Soils Inve e area. The occu- ided on the Soi Anticipate 7.5m <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm Anticipate 15mm <5mm to 10mm less than 10mm less than 10mm ge precautions on the variable s se colluvium, or Incidence y Frequency 1	resources will be tely buried sites estigation (2023) upence of these I Map, Drawing I PRELIMINAR` m to 15mm total h n collapse settlement n settlement (S). m to >30mm total n collapse settlement n settlement (S).	e adverse would st) have co soils and R1833/1 Y COMM heave (H1 ent (C-C1) heave (H2 ent (C-C1) ditions er dense to Ris Bet 32	ely affected. ill be impacted onfirmed that po d their anticipat (Appendix F4) IENTARY),) and 2-H3),) and 2-H3),) and countered. The b dense transpo k class fore mitigation LOW	on, but this otentially ed in-service with the zon e subsurface orted materia After mitigation LOW

- ig p þ hhi near the building. Bearing pressures not to exceed 50KPa. У
- •

				PR	EFERRED		/E			
IMPACT	Sub-areas w	ith desig	nation 2[H	2-H3/C-C1/	S] - Site	drainage and j	plumbing servic	es prec	autions	
Preliminary profile vari residual dia	y recommenda es on this site abase.	ations are and is typ	provided b ical of loos	elow and ar e to mediur	e based or n dense co	n the variable s olluvium, transp	sub-surface condi ported material, a	tions en nd pebb	countered. The le marker overl	subsurface ying shallow
Impact	Туре	Severity	1			Incidence		Ris	k class	
		Extent	Duration		Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Bef miti	ore gation	After mitigation
Negative	Cumulative	1	4		4	1	3	36	LOW	LOW
COMMEN • E • S • S	 COMMENT/MITIGATION: Ensure freeboard of at least 150mm, i.e. top of floor slab to top of natural ground level, as required in the NHBRC Guidelines. Site drainage and service and plumbing precautions are to apply. Avoid water ponding or water ingress into the subsurface near the building. Bearing pressures not to exceed 50KPa. 									
IMPACT	Slope stabi	lity and e	rosion							
Exposure	of the fine grai	ned soils	in cuttings	on steep slo	pes may l	ead to erosion	and ravelling of t	he mate	rial when dry.	
Impact	Туре	Severity	1			Incidence		Risk	class	
N. C		Extent	Duration	Intensi	ty	Frequency	Probability	Befo	re mitigation	After mitigation
Negative	Cumulative	2	5	3		3	3	60	MEDIUM	LOW
• {	Stormwater is Where steep o support and pr Seepage may	controlled r near ver otection. create pro	and remov tical cuts a	ved efficient re required ere cut is to	ly and effe particularly aquitard in NO-GO A	ctively to preve / in the dolomit terface _TERNATIVE	ent erosion. e residuum provi	de retair	ning appropriate	e retaining wall
Potential i	impacts:	Significa	ance	Proposed	mitigatio	n:	Significance r	ating	Risk of the i	mpact and
	•	rating of impacts	f :	•	Ū		of impacts after mitigation:	er	mitigation noise implemented	ot being d
Sedimenta erosion	ition and	LC	W	The site w additional will be imp	ill be left a mitigation plemented.	s is. No measures	No mitigation measures will k implemented	De	The site will t additional mit measures wil implemented	be left as is. No igation I be
Infestation of alien inv species	and spread vasive	ME	DIUM	The site w additional will be imp the infesta will contine	ill be left a mitigation plemented. tion of the ue	s is. No measures Additionally, study area	No mitigation measures will t implemented	De	The site will the additional mit additional mit measures wil implemented	be left as is. No igation I be
Loss of po opportuniti	ssible job es	HI	GH	The site w additional will be imp	ill be left a mitigation plemented.	s is. No measures	No additional jo opportunities w created	ob vill be	The site will t additional mit measures wil implemented	be left as is. No igation I be
	_	_	_	PR			/E	_	_	
IMPACT	Infestation	of alien in	vasive spe	ecies durin	g operatio	on PHASE				
The disturb species are species.	bance of the n e already a pro	atural veg oblem in ti	etation by the project a	the propose area and utr	d activities	may increase should be taker	the spread of exe n not to disperse	otic spec and incr	cies. Alien and i ease the colon	nvasive sation of these
Impact	Туре	Severity				Incidence		Risk c	lass	
		Extent	Duration	Intensity		Frequency	Probability	Before	e mitigation	After mitigation
Negative	Direct	1	2	3		3	5	64	MEDIUM	MEDIUM
COMMEN	T/MITIGATIO	N:					for the state of the state			D. L. L. W. C.
• 5	 Successful re-vegetation in all areas is crucial to stabilise soils and limit infestation by invasive alien plant species. Rehabilitation should be undertaken on a progressive basis in these areas. 									
• / i	• A monitoring program should be put in place to remove exotic vegetation and maintain open space areas free from exotic invasions during operation.									

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

IMPACT Hydrological impacts

Although there are no delineated wetlands is located within the project area, it is important to make sure that no spills take place to prevent the contamination into the groundwater and surface run-off.

Impact	Туре	Severity		Incidence		Risk class			
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	emitigation	After mitigation
Negative	Indirect	1	2	3	5	3	48	LOW	LOW

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

- Stormwater infrastructure will be completed by the time the project is fully operational and landscaping will have been completed too. Therefore, impacts on the hydrology of the area will not be significant.
- If any bare areas are left unvegetated they could be vulnerable to heavy rainfall or windy conditions. These areas should therefore be covered as soon as possible.
- Bare areas where vegetation has been removed pose a risk of becoming a sediment load into river during heavy rainfall or windy conditions. Bare areas which have not recovered from the construction phase, should therefore be covered during such events.
- Temporary stormwater management structures should be used during operational phase in areas which have not recovered fully from construction activities.
- Any areas damaged as a result of stormwater runoff from the construction site must be rehabilitated.

IMPACT Socio-economic impacts - creation of job opportunities

A number of temporary and permanent employment and skills development opportunities will be created during operational phase of the proposed residential development. These opportunities will be of short-long term duration and will be limited to the construction requirements of the Contractor, however skills can be transferred which may be used during further opportunities. Future employment opportunities may arise from the resident of this development employing domestic workers.

Impact	Туре	Severity			Incidence		Risk class		
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Before	emitigation	After mitigation
Positive	Direct	3	3	4	5	5	100	MEDIUM	No mitigation required

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

- The Home Owners Association should, if possible, use local labour to ensure the economic growth of the surrounding area.
- The new development will result in increased income to the Zambezi Retail Park less which is located within 300m of the proposed development, as well as the other surrounding businesses in the area.

IMPACT Potential loss of riparian area. due to construction of Stormwater pipe

Construction work in the riparian area could lead to harmful consequences such as loss of vegetation, problems in re-establishment of vegetation after completion of works.

Impact	Туре	Severity			Incidence		Risk class		
		Extent	Duration	Intensity	Frequency	Probability	Befor	e mitigation	After
				_		_		-	mitigation
Negative	Direct	1	2	2	1	3	20	LOW	LOW

COMMENT/MITIGATION:

- Rehabilitation of disturbed vegetation must be undertaken as soon as construction has been completed. This must be aimed at
 improving the status quo of the riparian zone, i.e. by removing alien invasive species and planting indigenous species. The
 following guidelines apply to re-vegetation:
- Site preparation:
- Utilise erosion and sediment control techniques where needed.
- Grade the disturbed area to a stable uniform slope. Vegetative cover will not develop on an unstable slope.
- Loosen the soil by hand.
- Plant when the weather will permit e.g. suitable temperatures and moisture for plant growth. Spring plantings give the best results.
- On unstable soils use a soil saver such as fibre netting or a fibre mat.

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

 The sloped area is seeded and the mat placed on top to protect the bare soil before the planted vegetation has become established should the slope of the area be steep and could lead to erosion.

IMPACT Erosion Sheet erosion may occur during the operational phase as a result of the construction activities that has taken place on site. Where rehabilitation and bank stabilising has not taken place fully by the end of the construction activities, there is a risk of sedimentation and erosion taking place. Impact Type Severity Incidence **Risk class** Duration Intensity Probability After Extent Frequency Before mitigation mitigation Direct 2 3 2 3 30 LOW Negative 1 LOW COMMENT/MITIGATION: Checks must be carried out at regular intervals to identify areas where erosion is occurring. The control of soil erosion and siltation associated with operation is important at all locations on site, and particularly adjacent to riparian area. Both temporary and permanent soil erosion control measures must be used during the operation phase. Remedial action, including the rehabilitation of eroded areas and, where necessary, the relocation of the paths causing erosion, is to be undertaken. During rehabilitation, prompt and progressive reinstatement of bare areas is required. The topsoil layer is to be replaced on top during reinstatement. IMPACT Socio-economic impacts - economic growth possibilities Due to both the provision of additional job opportunities, as well as the availability of additional housing prospects, there will be a degree of regional economic growth. Impact Туре Severity Incidence Risk class Extent Duration Probability Before mitigation After Intensitv Frequency mitigation 3 5 99 Positive Direct 3 5 4 MEDIUM No mitigation required COMMENT/MITIGATION: No mitigation measures required. IMPACT Pollution of surface and groundwater due to potential sewer spills During the operational phase of this project, there is a higher risk of sewer spills due to the possibility of infrastructure malfunction. The occurrence of sewer spills can be mitigated through precautionary applications as identified below. Impact Severity Incidence **Risk class** Type Extent Duration Frequency Probability Before mitigation After Intensity mitigation Direct 3 5 2 52 Negative 5 2 MEDIUM LOW **COMMENT/MITIGATION:** Preventive measure must be undertaken during the construction of the infrastructures, securing all joints for minimum spillage occurrences. Should a spillage occur, the EMP should be followed. Where contamination occurs, soil must be immediately removed to prevent further contamination. Should faulty infrastructure be identified, it must be replaced immediately after discovery. This must form part of a maintenance plan approved by the competent authority. Records must be kept of sewage spillages during both phases, construction and operational. An emergency preparedness plan must be in place for instances where spills occur that can be harful to people or the receiving enviroment.

	PREFE	ERRED ALTERNATIVE							
NO-GO ALTERNATIVE									
Sedimentation and erosion	LOW	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented.	No mitigation measures will be implemented	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented.					
Infestation and spread of alien invasive species	MEDIUM	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented. Additionally, the infestation of the wetland vegetation area will continue	No mitigation measures will be implemented	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented.					
Loss of possible job opportunities	HIGH	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented.	No additional job opportunities will be created	The site will be left as is. No additional mitigation measures will be implemented					

List any specialist reports that were used to fill in the above tables. Such reports are to be attached in the appropriate Appendix.

- The following specialist reports have been included in Appendix F of the BAR:
 - Ecological and Wetland Riparian Assessment
 - Heritage Impact Assessment
 - Geotechnical Report
 - Provisional Geotechnical Surficial Soils Investigation

Describe any gaps in knowledge or assumptions made in the assessment of the environment and the impacts associated with the proposed residential development.

To obtain a comprehensive understanding of the vegetation in the study area, a long-term study should be conducted as certain species only flower in certain seasons. However, due to time constraints, such long-term studies were not feasible, and most conclusions have been based on the field survey which was conducted on 7 October 2022.

Routine maintenance of the proposed external infrastructure needs to be done following the completion of the construction phase. This has been incorporated into the EMPr of the proposed project and must be incorporated into the management guidelines of the future residential development as run by the Home Owners Association.

The heritage impact assessment indicated that a brief literature review is not exhaustive on the literature of the area. Also, due to the nature of heritage resources and pedestrian surveys, the possibility exists that some features or artefacts may not have been discovered and possible occurrence of graves and other cultural material cannot be excluded. The assessment only dealt with the proposed residential development area and was done in a non-intrusive surveying manner.

3. IMPACTS THAT MAY RESULT FROM THE DECOMMISSIONING AND CLOSURE PHASE

Briefly describe and compare the potential impacts (as appropriate), significance rating of impacts, proposed mitigation and significance rating of impacts after mitigation that are likely to occur as a result of the decommissioning and closure phase for the various alternatives of the proposed residential development. This must include an assessment of the significance of all impacts.

Proposal N/A

Alternative 1

N/A

Alternative 2

N/A

List any specialist reports that were used to fill in the above tables. Such reports are to be attached in the appropriate Appendix.

N/A

Where applicable indicate the detailed financial provisions for rehabilitation, closure and ongoing post decommissioning management for the negative environmental impacts.

N/A

4. CUMULATIVE IMPACTS

Describe potential impacts that, on their own may not be significant, but is significant when added to the impact of other activities or existing impacts in the environment. Substantiate response:

The proposed residential development is located on vacant land, which is owned by the developer (Zotec Developments (Pty) Ltd.).

A cumulative impact of this project would be additional vegetation clearing and ultimately change in land use required to allow for residential development. However, proper urban designs, which accommodates the natural features of the study area, by means of design and layout, enhances the use of the open space in the proposed development within an urban environment.

Sensitive areas would be protected by implementing mitigation measures as stated in the Environmental Management Programme (EMPr) Report.

5. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

Taking the assessment of potential impacts into account, please provide an environmental impact statement that sums up the impact that the proposal and its alternatives may have on the environment after the management and mitigation of impacts have been taken into account with specific reference to types of impact, duration of impacts, likelihood of potential impacts actually occurring and the significance of impacts.

Proposal

The impacts during the construction and operational phase have been identified.

The main negative impacts during the construction include, the natural environment in terms of the flora, fauna, hydrology, pollution of groundwater, alien vegetation infestation and erosion and the impact of infestation of alien invasive species.

During the operational phase of the proposed residential development, impacts include the natural environment in terms of the hydrology, cumulative vegetation clearance, alien vegetation and erosion. The disturbance of the natural vegetation by the proposed activities may increase the spread of exotic species. Alien and invasive species are already a problem in the project area and utmost care should be taken not to disperse and increase the colonisation of these species.

Vegetation clearance is an ongoing impact during urban development, which is considered a cumulative impact. However proper urban designs, which accommodates the natural features by means of design and layout, enhances the use of the open space in the proposed development within an urban environment is encouraged.

The impact is expected to be limited due to the housing need in the area, the general sense of place of the area complements the surrounding land uses, and the highly disturbed nature of the area proposed for the construction footprint. The positive impacts are related to upgrading of infrastructure, the employment opportunities for the surrounding community/area and the additional housing opportunities to be presented, leading to economic growth.

This alternative will result in all of the same impacts as the preferred proposal because the alternative access type, location and footprint would not vary. It has therefore, not been investigated and discussed at length.

For alternative 2:

The best practice principles has been applied to the engineering design in terms of the proposed infrastructure, therefore proposed services designs does not change the impacts of the proposed development. A minimum footprint approach during construction must be undertaken in order to ensure that minimal impacts on all sensitive features are maintained. The impacts during the construction and operational phase have been identified and will be similar for the alternative proposal. The negative impacts of the construction phase of the proposed residential development would be seen in the impacts such as the potential loss of riparian area, pollution of surface and groundwater, erosion, infestation of alien invasive plant species and the hydrological impacts. The main negative impacts and potential loss of riparian area due to construction of Stormwater pipe. The positive impacts of the proposed residential development are seen in the creation of job opportunities and additional housing prospects, boosting the local economy, and in turn the provincial economy. When all the potential positive and the negative impacts or the receiving environment. Due to the need for the project, with regards to the setting and highly disturbed nature of the area proposed for the construction footprint, the impact is expected to be limited.

No-go (compulsory)

The area surrounding the project site is in need of infrastructure upgrades. In the current state, Intaba Street, located along the proposed development, is narrow, in a poor condition and affected to potholes. The edges are affected by erosion. There are several businesses in the area as well as residential dwellings and the road is used for access to those areas.

There is no stormwater infrastructure along the road except along the southern end of the road for approximately 55m. Stormwater infrastructure will need to be constructed to help management of surface flow. Further erosion will also take place and soil may be washed into the existing stormwater inlets along Baviaanspoort road, leading to sediment loads depositing in the Moretele River area.

The no-go alternative would mean that the construction and related operation of the proposed residential development and associated infrastructure does not commence. This would in turn limite the additional growth in the area resulting in the current land to remain vacant and the infestation of alien invasive species will also continue. Without an upgrade to the road and further deterioration of the road will occur, and a hazard to drivers will continue to the increase. The access to the site is also planned from Intaba Street, which further necessitates the need to rehabilitate the road.

Furthermore, the potential job opportunities which will be created by the proposed residential development would not be presented and the potential housing opportunities in the area would not be created.

6. IMPACT SUMMARY OF THE PROPOSAL OR PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE

For proposal:

In accordance with the EIA Regulations, the potential impacts due to the construction and operational phases of the proposed residential development has been identified and assessed. An EMPr has been prepared in accordance with Appendix 4 of the EIA Regulations of 2014, as amended (GNR 326 of 2017) in terms of the NEMA and includes information on the proposed management or mitigation measures that was taken to address the environmental impacts that have been identified in this Draft BAR. These impacts include environmental impacts or objectives in respect of planning and design, pre-construction and construction activities, operation or undertaking of the activity and rehabilitation of the natural environment.

Any comments and/or concerns identified by I&APs during the review period of this Draft BAR review period will be incorporated into the Final BAR to be submitted to the GDARD for consideration.

Impacts for the construction and operational phases have been identified. The main negative impacts are possible erosion and potential impact on the /Moretele River if correct management of stormwater is not implemented; if care is not taken when construction takes place along in the riparian area; and the impact of infestation of alien invasive species.

When all the potential positive and the negative impacts are taken into consideration, it is considered that the proposed residential development will have a limited additional negative impact on the receiving environment.

The impact of the proposed residential development on the receiving environment, should appropriate mitigation measures be implemented, would be limited.

For alternative 1:

Other than an alternative entrance to the project area, no development alternatives were proposed for the proposed residential development, as the Applicant bought the site for the specific purpose of construction of the proposed residential development.

For alternative 2:

Other than an alternative entrance to the project area, no development alternatives were proposed for the proposed residential development, as the Applicant bought the site for the specific purpose of construction of the proposed residential development. Best practice principles were applied for the all concept design and engineering infrastructure so as to ensure limited impacts to the sensitive areas (wetland and its associated buffer area).

Where construction works within the sensitive areas are required (specifically regarding the external services infrastructure), a minimum impact footprint approach must be followed by all members of the construction and operational team. This aims to ensure that minimal impacts on the sensitive features are maintained.

Having assessed the significance of impacts of the proposal and alternative(s), please provide an overall summary and reasons for selecting the proposal or preferred alternative.

An alternative entrance to the project area, and alternative stormwater management measures were reviewed. No development alternatives were proposed for the proposed residential development, as the Applicant bought the site for the specific purpose of construction of the proposed residential development. Best practice principles will be applied for the all concept design and engineering infrastructure so as to ensure limited impacts to the riparian areas. Where construction works within the sensitive areas are required (specifically regarding the external services infrastructure), a minimum impact footprint approach must be followed by all members of the construction and operational team. This aims to ensure that minimal impacts on the sensitive features are maintained.

If this project is authorised, rehabilitation post construction will be implemented as stated in the EMPr.

The project will create jobs in the planning, as well as the construction phase.

7. SPATIAL DEVELOPMENT TOOLS

Indicate the application of any spatial development tool protocols on the proposed residential development and the outcome thereof.

The proposed residential development is located on two properties, Portions 426 and 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR. Both properties have been zoned as both zoned as Residential 3. The proposed project has considered and is guided by the region's SDF and IDP priorities of the area. The proposed residential development aligns with the principles listed in the SDF vision of "spatial resilience" in which the vulnerability to environmental degradation is reduced by protecting the ecological systems and supporting the transition to environmental sustainability while also supporting the 'spatial efficiency' principle through supporting job creation.

8. RECOMMENDATION OF THE PRACTITIONER

Is the information contained in this report and the documentation attached hereto sufficient to make a decision in respect of the activity applied for (in the view of the Environmental Assessment Practitioner as bound by professional ethical standards and the code of conduct of EAPASA).

YES	NO

If "NO", indicate the aspects that require further assessment before a decision can be made (list the aspects that require further assessment):

If "YES", please list any recommended conditions, including mitigation measures that should be considered for inclusion in any authorisation that may be granted by the competent authority in respect of the application:

Mitigation measures which has been listed in the impact assessment sections as well as implementation of the EMPr.

9. THE NEEDS AND DESIRABILITY OF THE PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT (AS PER NOTICE 792 OF 2012, OR THE UPDATED VERSION OF THIS GUIDELINE)

The site for the proposed residential development is located within the CoT, in the Gauteng Province. Gauteng is the smallest of the nine provinces; however, it comprises the largest share of the South African population which amounts to approximately 13. 7million people which is 24.1% of South Africa's total population of 56.5 million.

According to the IDPs for the municipality, the CoT as a population of 3 650 000 people. The population growth rate is approximately 2.74 % increase per annum. This development is necessary to accommodate the growing population of the province as a whole.

The proposed residential development will be located on Portion 426 and Portion 679 of the Farm Derdepoort 326-JR. The ecological impact of the proposed residential development is limited to the proposed residential development site and the stormwater outlet within the riparian area of the Moretele River. Environmental best practices will be followed throughout the construction and operational phases of the proposed residential development, especially within the installation of the stormwater infrastructure within the Moretele River sensitive area. The proposed residential development will be partially located within the NEMBA Endangered Ecosystem type, the Marikana Thornveld, and partially located within the NEMBA Vulnerable Ecosystem type, the Rand Highveld Grassland. However, due to numerous historical agricultural activities (as indicated by the Heritage Impact Assessment), no remnant vegetation of this ecosystem type is remaining, as verified by the ecological assessment. As verified by the geotechnical description of the proposed residential development sites, no rocky outcrops were found on site.

As per the Gauteng C-Plan (2011), the site will be located within less than 240 m of an area classified as a CBAs and within an Ecological Support Area, therefor all caution must be taken and mitigation measures as per the EMPr must be adhered to

As reference to the Heritage Impact Assessment report, the overall impact of the project is considered to be low and residual impacts can be managed to an acceptable level through implementation of the recommendations made in that report. The socio-economic benefits also outweigh the possible impacts of the development if the correct mitigation measures are implemented for the project. A chance find protocol as presented by the Heritage Assessment Specialist has been incorporated into the project specific EMPr.

This project will improve the livelihood of the larger area due to the creation of job opportunities and skills development during construction, and will also allow for an increase in the local economy of the surrounding area by creating much needed housing opportunities. During the construction phase, preference must be given to the local affected parties when recruiting laborer's. These parties must be trained in such a way as to assist with furthering their skills, where possible. The benefits will include additional housing prospects for future inhabitants of the Gauteng province.

The EMPr (Appendix G) provides measures to prevent or minimize the impact of the proposed residential development before, during and after construction. This project will have a minimum impact on additional resources as sustainable engineering designs and methods will be used throughout the development and monthly ECO monitoring will occur. In the long term, positive impacts will occur due to the proposed residential development.

10. THE PERIOD FOR WHICH THE ENVIRONMENTAL AUTHORISATION IS REQUIRED (CONSIDER WHEN THE ACTIVITY IS EXPECTED TO BE CONCLUDED)

The environmental authorisation is required for a period of 10 years.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME (EMPR) (MUST INCLUDE POST CONSTRUCTION MONITORING REQUIREMENTS AND WHEN THESE WILL BE CONCLUDED.)

If the EAP answers "Yes" to Point above then an EMP is to be attached to this report as an Appendix

EMPr attached

Yes

SECTION F: APPENDIXES

The following appendixes must be attached as appropriate (this list is inclusive, but not exhaustive):

It is required that if more than one item is enclosed that a table of contents is included in the appendix

Appendix A: Site plan(s) – (must include a scaled layout plan of the proposed activities overlain on the site sensitivities indicating areas to be avoided including buffers)

Appendix B: Photographs

Appendix C: Facility illustration(s)

Appendix D: Route position information

Appendix E: Public participation information

Appendix F: Water use license(s) authorisation, SAHRA information, service letters from municipalities, water supply information

Appendix G: Specialist reports

Appendix H: EMPr

Appendix I: Other information

CHECKLIST

To ensure that all information that the Department needs to be able to process this application, please check that:

- > Where requested, supporting documentation has been attached;
- > All relevant sections of the form have been completed.
